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Forward looking statement

In this annual report, w e  have m entioned certain forward look­
ing in form ation to  enable investors to  com prehend our business 
m odel and futu re  prospects and m ake inform ed investm ent deci­
sions. This annual report and o ther com m unications from  us, oral 
or w ritten , m ay include certain forward looking statem ents that 
set out certain antic ipated results based on m anagem ents as­
sumptions and plans. Even though th e  m anagem ent believes that 
they have been prudent in m aking such assumptions, w e cannot 
guarantee that these forw ard looking statem ents will be realised. 
W e undertake no ob ligation to  update forw ard looking statements. 
The achievem ent o f results is subject to  various risks, known and 
unknow n. W e request readers to  bear this in m ind w hile  reading 
this report.
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Notice

Notice is hereby given th a t th e  Tw enty Sixth Annual General
M eeting o f th e  m em bers o f Accel Transmatic Limited will be
held at Conference Hall, Park Centre, KINFRA Film & V ideo Park,
Kazhakuttom ,Thiruvananthapuram  - 695 585 on 14th August 2012
at 12 Noon to  transact th e  follow ing business:

Ordinary business:

1. To consider and adopt the  audited Profit and Loss account 
for th e  financial year ended 31 st M arch 2012 and the  audited  
Balance Sheet as at th a t date  and Reports o f the  Directors and 
Auditors thereon.

2. To appo in t a D irector in place o f Mr. N.R. Panicker w ho retires 
by rotation and being elig ible has offered himself for re­
appo in tm ent as a Director o f the  company. A brief resume of 
Mr. N.R. Panicker has been given in the  Corporate Governance  
section o f th e  Directors' Report.

Accordingly, to  consider and, if tho ught fit, to  pass w ith  or 
w ith o u t m odification, the  fo llow ing resolution as an ordinary  
reso lu tio n:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. N.R. Panicker, be and is hereby re­
appo inted a D irector o f the  company."

3. To consider and, if tho ught fit, to  pass w ith  or w ithou t 
m odification, th e  follow ing resolution as an ordinary  
reso lu tio n:

"RESOLVED th a t Mr. Philip John, a Director liable to retire by 
rotation, w ho does not seek re-election, is not reappointed a 
Director o f th e  Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER th a t the  vacancy, so created on the  Board 
o f Directors o f the  Company, be not filled."

4. To appo in t Auditors and to  fix their rem uneration and for 
this purpose to  consider and, if tho ught fit, pass w ith  or 
w ithou t m odification, the  follow ing resolution as an ordinary  
resolution; provided th a t in the  event o f the  provisions 
o f Section 224A o f the  Companies Act, 1956, becom ing  
applicable to  the  Com pany on the  date o f holding this 
m eeting, th e  same will be proposed as a special resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT the  Auditors, M /s. Varma & Varma, Chartered  
Accountants, w ho retire at the  conclusion o f this m eeting, be  
and are hereby re-appoin ted Auditors o f the  Com pany to  hold 
office from  th e  conclusion o f this Annual General M eeting  
until the  conclusion o f the  next Annual General M eeting o f 
the  company, a t a rem uneration to  be fixed by the  Board, in 
consultation w ith  th e  Auditors.

Special business:

5. To consider and, if tho ught fit, to  pass w ith  or w ithou t 
m odification(s), the  follow ing resolution as a Special 
R esolution:

“RESOLVEDTHAT in accordance w ith  the  provisions o f Sections 
1 9 8 ,2 6 9 ,3 0 9  read w ith  Schedule XIII and all o ther applicable  
provisions, if any, o f the  Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory  
m odification(s) or re-enactm ent thereo f and subject to  such 
approvals /  consents, if any, approval o f the  com pany be and 
is hereby accorded to  the  re-appoin tm ent o f Mr. Philip John as 
W holetim e Director w ith  effect from  01.04.2012 for the  period

upto the  holding o f Annual General M eeting on14.08.2012 to  
consider the  accounts for the  year ended 31.03.2012, on the  
term s and conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statem ent 
annexed to  the  Notice convening this m eeting, w ith  liberty to  
the  Board o f Directors (hereinafter referred to  as "the Board" 
which term  shall be deem ed to  include any C om m ittee o f the  
Board constituted to  exercise its powers, including the powers 
conferred by this Resolution) to  alter and vary the  term s and 
conditions and /  or rem uneration, subject to  the  same not 
exceeding the  limits specified under Schedule XIII to  the  
Companies Act, 1956 or any statutory modification(s) or re­
enactm ent thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the  Board be and is hereby 
authorized to  take such steps as m ay be necessary to  execute  
and sign the  agreem ent and other docum ents and desirable 
to  im plem ent and give effect to  the  foregoing Resolution.

Explanatory statement pursuant to section 173 (2) of the 
Companies Act ,1956

Item  3 :
In accordance w ith  th e  provisions o f Section 256 o f the  Act 
and the  Articles o f Association o f the  Company, Mr. Philip 
John, retires by rotation but has not sought re-election. It has 
been decided by the  Board that the  vacancy so created on the  
Board o f Directors o f th e  Com pany be not filled.

Mr. Philip John is a W holetim e Director o f the  Com pany since 
01.04.2004. Mr. Philip John ceases to be a w holetim e director 
of the  com pany from  15th August 2012.The Board places on 
record its appreciation for the  contribution made by him to  
the  company.

Item  5 :
The com pany had appointed Mr. Philip John for a period of 
three years and such period has expired on 31.03.2012.

However, Mr. Philip John is not seeking re-election as a 
Director and will be a D irector only upto  the  holding o f the  
Annual General M eeting o f the  com pany i.e 14.08.2012.

The software operations which Mr. Philip John was directly  
supervising were also hived o ff to  another company.

Considering that Mr. Philip John will cease to  be a Director as 
on date  o f the  Annual General M eeting, it has been decided 
th a t Mr. Philip John continues as a W holetim e Director till the  
holding o f the  Annual General M eeting to  be held to consider 
the  accounts for the  year ended 31.03.2012.

Mr. Philip John is interested in the  resolution, as it relates to  his 
appo intm ent. However no rem uneration is being paid to  Mr. 
Philip John for the  period from  April 1 ,2012.

None o f the  other Directors is interested in the  resolution set 
out in the  Notice.

Mr. Philip John holds 152,721 shares in the  Company.

Mr. Philip John is not related to  any o ther D irector o f the  
Company.

This explanatory statem ent tog eth er w ith  the  accompanying 
notice m ay be treated as an abstract o f the  terms of 
appo in tm ent o f Mr. Philip John under section 302 (7) o f the  
Com panies Act 1956.

Accordingly, the  com pany is proposing to  pass this resolution
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in this Annual General M eeting as a Special Resolution.

Inform ation required under Clause (iv) o f proviso to  paragraph  
1 (B) o f Section II o f Part II o f Schedule XIII o f the  Companies  
Act, 1956 is given b e lo w :

The inform ation below  is in relation to  the  proposal contained  
in Item  No.5 o f th e  Notice relating to  re-appoin tm ent o f Mr. 
Philip John as W holetim e Director o fth e  Company.

(i) Background details
An engineer and a M.Tech from  IIT,Chennai, w ith  34 33 years of 
experience in organizations like ER&DC,Thiruvananthapuram  
as th e  President o f Software division, NEST group o f com panies  
and M anaging D irector o f erstwhile Ushus Technologies  
Private Limited.

(ii) Past Remuneration
For the  financial year, 2011 -  2012, Mr. Philip John 's  total 
rem uneration was Rs.30.06 lacs.

(iii) Recognition or awards /  Job profile and his 
suitability.
Mr. Philip John has m anaged th e  Technologies Division ably 
over the  last six years.

In the  op inion o f th e  Board, he is em inently  suited for the  
position he holds.

(iv) Remuneration
Mr. Philip John will not be paid any rem uneration. He shall 
be reimbursed only the  actual expenses incurred for the  
company.

(v) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly w ith  the  
com pany, or relationship w ith  managerial personnel, if any.

O ther than  the  equity  holdings as stated above, Mr. Philip 
John has no other pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly  
w ith  the  com pany or any o f its Directors.

(vi) Other Information
The A greem ent also sets out the  duties and various 
obligations o f Mr. Philip John. The appo in tm ent o f Mr. Philip 
John as a W holetim e Director as aforesaid, are required to  be 
approved by th e  m em bers at this Annual General M eeting in 
term s o f section 269  o f th e  Act. The Resolution at item  5 o f  
Special Business is in tended for this purpose.

(vii) General Information
Nature o f Interest
The Com pany is a provider o f M edia solutions & services.

Date or expected date  o f com m encem ent o f commercial 
production.

The Com pany has been in business for about 24 years.

In case o f new  companies, expected date o f com m encem ent 
of activities.

Not applicable, as the  com pany is an existing company.

Financial perform ance based on given indicators.

( A m ount in Rupees Lacs)

31.03.12 31.03.11 31.03.10

Sales 2389.77 1966.85 1828.63

Profit Before Tax 28.89 (365.15) (142.53)

Profit A fter Tax 28.89 (365.15) (165.17)

Shareholders'Funds 508.76 480.44 804.53

Rate o f Dividend on 
equity shares (%)

NIL NIL NIL

Export perform ance

The Com pany's export for the  past three years are as fo llo w s:

( A m ount in Rupees Lacs)

31.03.12 31.03.11 31.03.10

Incom e from  services 806.74 1846.44 1415.47

Foreign investments or collaborators, if any.

Not applicable.

The com pany as a part o f its long term  plan has invested in 
anim ation business which has a long gestation period. This 
has resulted in losses or inadequate profits for the  year. 
Eventhough the  com pany incurred losses, it has gained  
invaluable experience in its line o f business and is expected to  
m ake profits in future years.

By Order o f the  Board o f Directors,

Chennai. N.R. Panicker
29th M ay 2012 Chairman

Registered Office:
17/27, Jagathy, Trivandrum  -  695 014.

Notes:

1. A m em ber entitled  to  attend and vote is entitled to  appo int 
a proxy to  attend  and vote instead o f him self/herself and the  
proxy need not be a m em ber, a proxy m ay not vote except 
on a poll. The proxy form , in order to  be effective, should be 
received at the  registered office o fth e  com pany not later than  
48  hours before the  com m encem ent o fth e  m eeting.

2. The Explanatory S tatem ent pursuant to  Section 173(2) o f the  
Companies Act, 1956 in respect o f Special Business as set out 
above to  be transacted at the  M eeting is annexed hereto and 
forms part o f this Notice.

3. The Register o f Mem bers and Share Transfer Books o f the  
Com pany shall rem ain closed during th e  Book Closure period, 
ie., from  Monday, 6th  August 2012 to  Tuesday, 14th August 
2012 (both days inclusive).

4. Corporate m em bers in tending to  send the ir authorized  
representatives to  attend th e  M eeting are requested to  send 
a certified true copy o f the  Board Resolution authorizing  
their representative to  attend  and vote on their behalf at the  
M eeting upto  the  date  o f Annual General M eeting.

5. The Mem bers /  Proxies are requested to  bring their copy of 
the  Annual Report w ith  them  at th e  M eeting and to  produce
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the  admission slip, duly com pleted and signed,at the  entrance  
for admission to  the  m eeting hall.

6. Notice alongw ith  explanatory statem ent, Annual Report as 
well as Annual Accounts o f th e  subsidiary com panies and  
Register o f Directors' Shareholding are open for inspection, 
during th e  business hours, a t the  Registered Office o f the  
Company.

7. M em bers are hereby inform ed that D ividend which remains 
unclaim ed/ un-encashed over a period o f 7 years, has to  
be transferred as per the  provisions o f Section 205A o f the  
Com panies Act, 1956, by the  Com pany to  "The Investor 
Education and Protection Fund" (IEPF) constituted by the  
Central G overnm ent under Section 205C o f th e  Companies  
Act, 1956.

H ereunder are the  details o f Dividends paid by the  Com pany  
and the ir respective due dates o f transfer o f unclaim ed /  un­
encashed dividends to  th e  designated fund o f the  Central 
G overnm ent;

Dividend for 
the  Financial 
Year

Date o f  
Declaration o f  
Dividend

Due date o f transfer to  
the  Central Governm ent

2005-06 15-09-2006 14-09-2013

2006-07 24-09-2007 23-09-2014

It m ay please be noted th a t once the  unclaim ed /  un­
encashed dividend is transferred to  "The Investors Education 
& Protection Fund" no claim shall lie w ith  the  com pany in 
respect o f such am ount by th e  shareholder.

In view  o f th e  above, the  shareholders are advised to  send 
the ir un-encashed dividend warrants to  the  Registered Office 
of the  C om pany for revalidation and encash them  before the  
due date  for transfer to  th e  IEPF.

Share Transfer Agents to  enable them  to  consolidate all such 
holdings into one single account.

13. M em bers holding shares in the  physical form  can avail of 
th e  nom ination facility by filing Form 2B (in duplicate) w ith  
the  Com pany or its Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, 
M /s. In tegrated Enterprises (India) Limited, 2nd floor, Kences 
Towers, No.1 Ramakrishna Street, N orth Usman Road,T. Nagar, 
Chennai - 6 0 0  017.

14. In case th e  m ailing address m entioned on this Annual Report 
is w ithou t Pin-code, M em bers are requested to  kindly notify  
the ir Pin-codes im m ediately.

15. M em bers are requested to  bring their Annual Report copies 
and the  duly filled in attendance slips sent herew ith while  
com ing for a ttending the  Annual General M eeting.

16. M em bers are requested to  register their e-m ail addresses with  
the  Com pany for receiving the  Report and Accounts, Notices, 
etc., in electronic m ode, as a measure o f support to  the  Green 
Initiative in Corporate Governance o f th e  Ministry o f Corporate  
Affairs, Governm ent o f India. The form  for such registration can 
be dow nloaded from  the  Com pany's corporate website www. 
acceltransmatic.com under the  section "Investor Relations".

By Order of the  Board o f Directors

Chennai. N.R. Panicker
29th  M ay 2012 Chairman

Registered Office:
17/27, Jagathy, Trivandrum  -  695 014.

8. The particulars o f the  Director, retiring by rotation and elig ible  
for re-appoin tm ent, are given in the  Report o f the  Directors to  
the  M em bers and also in th e  Report on Corporate Governance.

9. The com pany w hole-heartedly  welcom es m em bers /  proxies 
at the  annual general m eeting o f th e  company, however, 
the  m em bers /  proxies m ay please note th a t no gifts /  g ift 
coupons will be distributed at the  m eeting.

10. M em bers w ho wish to  obtain any inform ation on the  
C om pany or the  accounts m ay visit C o m p a n y 's  website  
www.acceltransm atic.com  or m ay send their queries at least 
10 days before th e  date  o f the  M eeting to  the  Com pany at 
th e  Corporate office at III Floor, 75, Nelson Manickam  Road, 
Chennai -  600  029  or at the  Com pany's Registered office atT.C 
17/27, Jagathy, Trivandrum  -  695 014  or em ail to  stprabhu@  
transmaticsystems.com.

11. W hile  M em bers holding shares in physical form  m ay write  
to  the  C om pany for any change in the ir address and bank  
m andates, M em bers having shares in electronic form  may 
inform  any change in address and bank details to  their 
depository partic ipant im m ediately so as to  enable the  
C om pany to  dispatch dividend warrants at correct address.

12. M em bers holding m ore than one share certificate in the  same 
nam e or jo in t names in same order but under different Ledger 
folios, are requested to  apply for consolidation o f such Folios 
and send the  relevant share certificates to  the  Registrars and
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Director's report 

Dear shareholders.

Your directors are pleased to  present the  26th annual report 
tog eth er w ith  th e  audited accounts o f the  com pany for the  year 
ended M arch 31,2012 .

INR in million

Financial results

2012 2011

Total Income 237.42 202.69

Profit before interest, depreciation & tax 85.77 30.85

Interest 30.90 22.30

Depreciation 51.97 45.06

Provision for tax - -

Profit /(loss) after tax 2.89 (36.52)

Review of operations:

During the  financial year 2011-12, your com pany recorded total 
incom e o f Rs 237.42 m n (previous year Rs 202.69 m n) comprising  
incom e from  technology services o f Rs 72.95 mn, anim ation  
services o f Rs 17.18 m n , o ther services Rs.6.74 m n and profit on 
sale o f technologies division o f Rs 140.55 mn. During the  year, 
the  com pany com pleted developm ent o f its second intellectual 
property" Raju The R ic k s h a w T h e  com pany reported a net profit 
o f Rs 2.89 mn.

During the  year, th e  com pany sold its technology services business 
w ith  effect from  15.08.2011 to  M /s Accel Frontline Limited for cash 
consideration o f Rs. 199.70 mn after obtaining necessary approval 
o fth e  shareholders. The net tangib le  assets o fth e  division on the  
date o f transfer stood at Rs.59.15 mn, resulting in a profit on sale 
o f undertaking o f Rs.140.55 m n.T he  am ount realized was used to  
repay liabilities o f the  company, apart from  funding production  
o f Intellectual properties, Raju the  Rickshaw and Shaktimaan etc. 
During th e  financial year the  com pany incurred cash losses mainly  
on account o f Anim ation Business and the  same was also funded  
from  th e  consideration.

W ith  the  transfer o f the  technologies division, the  com pany 's  
fu ture focus will be in content developm ent services in A nim ation  
and other activities in m edia & enterta inm ent space.

During the  year the  anim ation division reported a negative EBITDA 
of Rs 67.54 m n (previous year, a positive EBITDA o f Rs.0.60 m n)and  
reported a loss o f Rs 146.38 mn m ainly due to  the  high interest 
outgo on the  term  loan availed for creation o f infrastructure and 
the  am ortization o f its Intellectual properties w ithou t realizing 
a m atching revenue by exploiting the  same through global 
distribution. During the  financial year under review, the  com pany  
capitalized am ounts spent on developm ent o f the  second 
intellectual p roperty and a co production property am ounting to  

Rs 38.34 mn.

The highlights o f the  perform ance are discussed in detail in the  
m anagem ent discussion and analysis report attached as Annexure  

to  this report.

Report on conservation of energy, technology absorption etc.

Inform ation as required under section 217 (1) (e) o fth e  Companies  
Act, 1956 read w ith  Com panies (disclosure o f particulars in the  
report o f board o f directors) rule, 1988 regarding conservation

o f energy, technology absorption are given in Annexure I to  this 
Report. The details regarding foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo are m entioned in the Notes to  th e  Accounts.

Management discussion and analysis

The m anagem ent discussion and analysis and various initiatives 
and future prospects o f the  com pany are enclosed, separately as 
Annexure II to  this Report.

Report of corporate governance

A report on Corporate Governance tog eth er w ith  auditor's 
certificate on com pliance w ith  th e  conditions o f Corporate  
Governance as stipulated under Clause 49  o fth e  Listing Agreem ent 
is provided in Annexure III to  this Report.

Auditors Certificate on corporate governance

The certificate issued by the  auditors o fth e  com pany on corporate  
governance is given in Annexure IV to  this Report.

Directors responsibility statement

The directors responsibility statem ent pursuant to  sub section 2 AA 
o f Section 217 o f the  Com panies Act 1956 is given in Annexure V 
to  this Report.

CEO /CFO Certification

The Chairman and the  Com pany Secretary have subm itted a 
certificate to  the Board regarding the  financial statem ents and 
other matters, as required under Clause 49  (V) o f the  Listing 
A greem ent. This is provided as Annexure VI to  this Report.

Particulars of employees

The particulars regarding employees o f the  com pany pursuant 
to  Section 217 (2A) o f th e  Companies Act, 1956 read w ith  the  
Companies (Particulars o f Employees) Rules, 1975 are given in 
Annexure VII to  the  Director's Report. However, in term s o f sec 
219 (1) (b) (iv) o f the  Companies Act, 1956 the  Directors Report 
(excluding Annexure VII) is being sent to  all the  shareholders of 
the  company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy o f 
the  said Annexure m ay w rite  to  the  Com pany Secretary at the  
registered office o fth e  company.

Dividends

Considering the  losses and th e  necessity to  conserve resources, the  
Directors do not recom m end any d ividend on the  equity  shares.

Directors

Mr. N.R. Panicker and Mr. Philp John Directors o fth e  company, retire 
by rotation.

Mr. N R Panicker being elig ible for re-appoin tm ent offers him self for 
reappointm ent.

Mr. Philip John, though being elig ible for reappointm ent, do not 
intend to  offer him self for reappoin tm ent and it has been decided 
that such vacancy is not filled up.

Quality management

Your company's quality  policy is to  enhance custom er satisfaction 
through continued im provem ent o f skills, processes and 
technologies. During the  year the  com pany continued to  invest
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in technologies, infrastructure and processes in order to  keep our 
quality  m anagem ent systems updated.
Auditors

M /s Varma & Varma, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, auditors o f 
the  C om pany retire at th e  ensuing Annual General M eeting, and 
being eligible, offer them selves for reappoin tm ent. The com pany  
has received confirm ation from  them  th a t their appo in tm ent 
will be w ith in  th e  limits prescribed under Section 224(1 B) o f the  
Com panies Act, 1956. The Audit C om m ittee  o f the  Board has 
recom m ended the ir reappoin tm ent. The necessary resolution is 
being placed before the  shareholders for approval.

Internal control systems

Your com pany has adequate  internal control procedures  
com m ensurate w ith  th e  size and nature o f its operations.The Audit 
C om m ittee  constituted by the  Board o f Directors is functioning  
effectively. The Internal Audit for the  year 2 0 1 1 -2 0 1 2  was carried 
o u t by M/s. Vijayakum ar & Easwaran, Chartered Accountants, 
Trivandrum  covering all areas o f operations. All significant 
observations w ere discussed in the  Audit Com m ittee, which m et 4 
tim es during th e  year under review.

Depository systems

Your Company's shares are tradab le com pulsorily in electronic form  
and your C om pany has established connectivity w ith  both the  
depositories, i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In view  o f the  
num erous advantages offered by the  Depository system, m em bers  
are requested to  avail o f the  facility o f dem aterialization o f the  
Company's shares on either o f th e  Depositories as aforesaid.
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Annexure I to the directors' report

Particulars pursuant to  Companies (Disclosure o f Particulars in the  
Report o f Board o f Directors) Rules, 1988

Conservation of energy. Technology Absorption, Adaptation 
and Innovation and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

The company's operations involve very low energy consum ption  
and therefore th e  scope o f energy conservation is lim ited. The  
com pany has taken steps to  conserve electricity consum ption in 
offices.

The com pany is in high technology business and is constantly  
upgrading technology to  m eet th e  current challenges at all levels. 
Alm ost all employees in the  com pany use personal computers, 
in a netw orked environm ent .The com pany uses in ternet based 
technology for its com m unication needs.

The details regarding foreign exchange earnings and ou tgo are

being m entioned in the  notes to  th e  accounts.

Annexure II to the Director's report 

Management discussion and analysis 

The year in brief

The com pany reported a net turnover o f Rs 237.42 m n for the  year 
ended M arch 3 1 ,2 01 2  (previous year Rs 202.69 m n).The com pany  
reported a net profit o f Rs 2.89 m n for the  year ended M arch 31, 
2012 (previous year N et Loss Rs.36.52 mn).

During the  year, th e  com pany sold its Technology services 
division w ith  effect from  15.08.201 I t o  Accel Frontline Limited for 
a consideration o f Rs. 199.70 M n. The transaction was approved 
by the  m em bers o f the  com pany by w ay o f a postal ballot on
27.09.2011. This strategic decision was m ainly taken to  reduce the  
interest burden and th e  external liability and also to  fund the  losses 
of A nim ation division.

During th e  year, th e  com pany continued to  incur losses in the  
anim ation services division. Flowever, the  com pany com pleted  
developm ent o f its second intellectual property "Raju the  
Rickshaw" a pre-school TV series o f 78 episodes o f 7 m inutes each. 
This, together w ith  our other IPR - India Fables, which is a TV series 
of 26 episodes o f 11 m inutes each is expected to  bring revenues in 
the  com ing years.

The com pany is yet to  explore the  India sub continent Right held 
by the  com pany for the  3D  fam ily adventure film, "The Flying 
Machine" produced by Oscar w inning producer Flugh Welchman 
o f Breakthru Films, UK.The film  has been produced w ith an unique 
com bination o f Cutting Edge Live Action, Stop M otion Anim ation  
and 3D  stereoscopy.

During the  year, th e  com pany along w ith  Big Anim ation com pleted  
th e  first phase o f an Indian anim ation property,"Shaktimaan" in 2D  
for broadcasting, which consists o f 13 episodes o f 23 m inutes each. 
This is the  first initiative o f its kind in India w here tw o  Indian studios 
are jo in ing hands to  produce a world class property for w orldw ide  
distribution. This has been a foundation for developing properties  
w ith  shared responsibilities. The com pany had invested in this 
property developm ent and had acquired 40%  share in the  Rights.

Preferential warrants

The preferential warrants issued by the  com pany in Decem ber 
2010, for which th e  com pany has received Rs. 41.66 Lakhs has not 
been converted into Equity Shares, by paying the  full value o f the  
shares.The w arrant holder can exercise the  conversion option on or 
before 30th  June 2012.

Business Model

Animation Division (ww w.accelanim ation.com )

Accel Anim ation Studios (AAS) was set up in July 2006, as an 
incubated unit. The m ain lines o f business include 3D  Anim ation, 
content developm ent, Visual Effects creation and M otion Capture  
Services. AAS provides International quality  digital m edia content 
to  its clients. Focused on consistent and seamless delivery w ith  
emphasis on delivering on tim e, AAS offers end-to -end services 
in anim ation, M otion Capture, and VFX. The Anim ation Division is 
poised to  capture a large share o f th e  quality-oriented business 
in the  anim ation space in India. Currently the  operations of 
AAS are being carried out in its studios situated in Chennai and 
Thiruvananthapuram  A nim ation SEZ.

http://www.accelanimation.com
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Indian Media & Entertainment Industry

The Indian M&E industry grew  from  INR 652 billion in 201 Oto INR 
728 billion in 2011, registering an overall grow th o f 12percent.The  
industry is estim ated to  achieve a grow th o f 13 percent in 2012  
to  touch INR 823 billion. Going forward, the  sector is projected to  
grow  at a healthy CAGR o f 14.9 percent to  reach INR 1,457 billion 
by 2016. an im ation and VFX, digital advertising and gam ing are 
fast increasing the ir share in the  overall pie.The anim ation and 
VFX industry in India has grow n from  INR 14 Bn in 2007 to  Inr 31 
Bn in 2011. The grow th in 2011 over 2010  is 31.2%. the  industry is 
expected to  be at a INR 69 Bn in 2016 registering a CAGR o f 17%  
from  2011 to  2016.

Lack of capital is the biggest challenge

Capital continues to  rem ain th e  prim ary challenge for most 
anim ation com panies in India. W hile  a high quality anim ated  
production is far m ore expensive to  create than a live action  
film , given the  w ider appeal o f th e  genre, it has the  potentia l to  
be m onetized not only in India, bu t across several international 
markets as well. However, there  is a significantly high cost involved 
in prom oting and distributing this content across m ultip le markets. 
Also, post the  econom ic slowdown, m any o f the  projects were  
green lit w ith  lim ited funding options resulting in such projects 
either being delayed or shelved. Persistent escalations in the  cost 
o f production fu rther drives up break even points and studios 
therefore find  it difficult to  find distribution partners.

Way forward

Some o f th e  key success factors for anim ation and VFX industry  
going forw ard could be a play on th e  following:
*  Indian anim ation com panies need to  identify innovative  

avenues for grow ing licensing and merchandising revenues
*  Players need to  create a local m arket and drive domestic  

consum ption for anim ated content. However, it is im perative  
for players to  do  so at reasonable cost

*  Invest in co-productions th a t have global appeal and are 
easier to  distribute across global markets

*  ontinue to  lobby w ith  the  governm ent for incentives to  
provide the  necessary boost to  this sector for prom oting  
outsourced w ork and co-production deals

Business model

The prim arily engagem ent m odels will be to  w ork on outsourced  
content developm ent and post production services for Indian 
and overseas clients, to  engage in co-production w ith  renowned  
production houses, and to  create ow n IPs for long term  gains.

The studio has adopted creation o f IPs as its prim ary engagem ent 
m odel. IP, once created yields recurring revenues over a long period  
o f tim e, as anim ation contents can be telecast or sold repeatedly  
over th e  years.The shelf life o f anim ation content is roughly around  
15 years. However, the  IP creation is highly capital intensive and the  
revenues are expected to  accrue only after an initial developm ent 
period o f 18 to  24  m onths.. Accel Anim ation Studios has already  
released tw o  IPs, Indian Fables (ww w. southindiafables.com ) and , 
Raju th e  Rickshaw for w orldw ide release. Raju the  rickshaw is an IP 
developed by the  com pany under a lisence agreem ent for 15 years 
w ith  Kahani W orld Inc, Canada

Human resource management

As on M arch 3 1 ,2 0 1 2 , the  com pany had an em ployee strength o f 
4 4  (PY 396). W e have an established em ployee recruitm ent and  
retention policy, which involves identifying right talents through  
recruitm ent training cum placem ent program m e as well as lateral

recruitm ent and providing them  w ith  appropriate training and 
induction.

W e ensure th a t all our employees receive technical and m anagerial 
inputs regularly through various training programs.

Infrastructure

Our registered office is located in Trivandrum  and our corporate  
office is located at Chennai.. The Anim ation Division operates in 
fully equipped w orld class studios in Chennai and Trivandrum. 
The Chennai facility is 7,000 sqft & the  Trivandrum  facility is about
12,000 sqft. These offices are well equipped w ith  all necessary 
infrastructure facilities.

Finance accounts and operational controls

The financial objective of th e  com pany is to  bring in efficiencies 
o f operations at all levels so as to  m axim ize return on capital 
em ployed and to  generate sufficient cash profits to  fund on-going  
expansions and to  m eet th e  grow th objectives.

The audit com m ittee  and the  Board periodically review  
perform ance param eters related to  financial perform ance o f the  
com pany to  ensure smooth im plem entation o fth e  internal control 
systems and efficient m anagem ent o f the  various resources. The 
audit com m ittee  conducts periodic reviews w ith  th e  m anagem ent, 
internal auditor and the  external auditor.There is an on-going cost 
m onitoring program  to  control various expenses and the  Board 
reviews the  variance analysis.

Revenues

During the  year under review, the  company, reported a net turnover 
o f Rs 237.42 m n for the  year ended M arch 3 1 ,2 0 1 2  (previous year 
Rs 202.69 m n) registering a grow th o f 14.60%. The com pany  
reported a net profit o f Rs 2.89 m n ( Previous year Loss 36.52 m n ) .

Sales from geographies

During th e  year under review, services exports contributed 79%  to  
th e  total revenue whereas domestic operations contributed 21%  
to  the  total revenue.

Financial challenges

The m ajor challenge during the  year was working capital 
m anagem ent. The com pany has been incurring cash losses in 
th e  Anim ation Division for the  past 5 years.The com pany has not 
been successful in securing a large value outsourcing order w ith  
substantial margins. However, the  com pany had to  keep pace w ith  
technology and had to  upgrade its facilities continuously resulting 
in additional expenditure. The m anagem ent has taken steps to  
contain losses and hopes to turnaround the  operations o f the  
anim ation division during th e  current financial year.

Reserves and surpluses

The General Reserves stood at Rs 24.46 mn including capital 
reserves o f Rs 12.16 m n .T he  com pany has not revalued any o f its 
assets during the  year under review

Loan profile

As on March 31,2012, the  com pany had sanctioned working capital 
facility o f Rs 195.00 m n from  the  company's bankers, o u t o f which  
Rs 180.00 m n is fund based and Rs 15.00 m n is non-fund based. An 
am ount o f Rs.25 mn relates to  the  Technologies business which  
was sold during the  year to  M /s Accel Frontline Limited. Pending
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transfer o f liability in the  books o f the  bank, the utilized balance 
as at 31.03.2012 relating to the  transferred business was Rs. 21.25 
m n.The funds utilized and outstanding relating to  the  continuing  
business were Rs 69.18 m n .T h e  total am ount o f perform ance  
guarantees issued by the  banks stands at Rs 0.11 m n,on the  balance 
sheet date .The term  loans were availed for creation o f facilities for 
anim ation division.

Loans and advances

The loans and advances were Rs 12.08 mn as at the  end for the  
year under review. This includes an am ount o f Rs 4.67 mn lying as 
security deposits offered for various leased premises taken by the  
com pany and other deposits .deposits w ith  governm ent bodies Rs. 
6.28 mn, o ther advances am ounting to Rs.0 .34 mn and Rs 0.79 mn 
of unbilled revenues as on M arch 31,2012 .

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred during the  year towards  
upgradation was Rs 0.64 mn. These capital expenditure were  
incurred m ainly to enhance the  infrastructure of the  software  
division. A part from  this, the  expenditure involved in creation of 
intellectual property in the Anim ation Division for international 
exploitation, which got com pleted and ready for com mercialization  
am ounting to Rs. 106.34 mn was also capitalised during the year.

Depreciation and Amortization

The com pany has been follow ing straight-line basis o f depreciation  
at th e  prescribed rates m entioned in the Companies Act. The 
Digital Assets which are classified as In tangib le Assets are 
currently am ortized u n d erw ritten  down value m ethod at the  rates 
prescribed in the  Incom e Tax Act. During the  year, the am ount of 
depreciation charged to the  Profit and Loss account was Rs 28.26  
mn w ithou t m atching revenue. The com pany expects im proved  
revenue from  licensing in the com ing years, which is expected to  
exceed the  value o f am ortization o f the  digital assets.The com pany  
expects to  receive revenues for the next 15 years on the digital 
assets from  licensing o f w orldw ide rights through broadcast and 
other m edia, whereas the  am ortization charge will be com pleted  
in 7 years.

Investments

During the  year, the  com pany sold its investm ent held in Accel 
N orth America Inc, a 100%  subsidiary in USA to  Accel Frontline 
Limited,as a part o f the  sale ofTechnology services business.

Interest outflow

The com pany incurred a total outflow  o f Rs 34.05 mn towards  
interest and finance charges, out o f which Rs 3.15 mn was 
capitalized as w ork in progress towards IPR developm ent and the  
balance am ount o f Rs.30.90 mn charged to  the  Profit and Loss 
account.The interest ou tflow  also includes an am ount o f Rs 15.03 
M n provided as interest towards unsecured loans from  associated 
companies.

Taxation

During the  year, the  com pany has not provided for any taxes on 
incom e due to  losses incurred in the  current year and carried 
forward losses. The company, as a m atter o f prudence, has not 
accounted deferred tax assets.

Forex

During the  year, the  com pany has m ade a gain o f Rs 3.16 mn

(Previous year of Rs 0.32 mn) on account o f foreign exchange  
fluctuations.

Risk management

We operate in highly com petitive and fast changing m arket 
environm ent. We face challenges due to  the  fast changing  
technology and shortage o f technically com peten t professionals 
and the high attritions that are faced in the industry. We have 
m itigated these risks through geographical diversification of 
operations and IP based services. In anim ation, the com pany has 
invested in technologies not available elsewhere in our country so 
that w e  can offer a bouquet of services for overseas customers. We 
believe that w e have requisite m anagem ent and HRD capabilities 
to  recruit, train and deploy professionals on an ongoing basis, in 
order to  m ake available sufficient m anpower. We have a review  
system which analyses various risk factors in the operations of the  
com pany and the business risks associated w ith various contracts 
in system integration as well as services. We believe that w e have 
adequate checks and balances in place to identify and m itigate  
risks associated w ith  our business.

Room for optimism

The Anim ation business is all set to  take a centre stage in various 
spears not lim iting itself to  en terta inm ent and gam ing. We believe 
our existing resources are capable to cater the needs o f the  
growing m arket.The com pany has equipped itself w ith the  latest 
technology in the  field o f anim ation and is expected to generate  
reasonable revenues in the future. W ith a specific focus on 
anim ation, the  m anagem ent is confident o f seeing a turnaround  
through grow th o f these divisions in the  com ing years.

Cautionary statement

Statem ents in the  M anagem ent Discussion and Analysis describing 
the  company's objective, projections estimates and expectations  
m ay be forward-looking statem ents w ithin the  m eaning of 
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could 
differ m aterially from  those expressed or im plied. Im portant 
factors that could make a difference to the  company's operations 
include econom ic conditions affecting dem and/supply  and price 
conditions in the  domestic and overseas m arket in which the  
com pany operates, change in Governm ent regulations, tax laws, 
interest costs, other statutes and other incidental factors.

Thus the  com pany should and need not be held responsible, if the 
fu ture turns out to  be som ething quite different.The Discussion and 
Analysis should be pursued subject to  this m anagem ent disclaimer.

Annexure III to Directors Report 

Report on Corporate Governance 

Corporate Governance

Your C om pany has been practicing th e  principle o f good  
C orporate Governance, which comprises all activities that result 
in the  control o f the  C om pany in a regulated m anner, a im ing to  
achieve transparent, accountable and fair m anagem ent.

The details o f C orporate Governance com pliance by the  Com pany  
as per Clause 49 o f the  Listing A greem ent w ith  Stock Exchange 
are as under:

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

The basic philosophy o f Corporate Governance in the  Company  
is to  achieve business excellence and dedicate  itself to  increasing
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long te rm  Shareholder value, keeping in v iew  the  needs and  
interests o f all its Stakeholders. The C om pany is com m itted  to  
transparency in all its dealings and places emphasis on business 
ethics.

Board of Directors

The Board o fth e  C om pany is w ell structured w ith  adequate  blend  
o f professional, executive and in dependent directors.

The Board o f Directors comprises o f 4  D irectors o u t o f which  
3 Directors are N on- Executive D irectors. The C om pany has 
a Non Executive Chairm an and one half o f Board o f Directors  
are In dependent D irectors. The day to -d ay  operations o f the  
com pany are carried ou t by th e  Divisional Heads designated as 
President and  CEO o f th e  respective Divisions and supervised by 
th e  Board o f Directors.

None o fth e  Directors on th e  com pany's Board is a m em ber o f more  
than  10 com m ittees and Chairm an o f m ore than  5 Com m ittees  
across all th e  com panies in which he is a Director. All th e  Directors  
have m ade necessary disclosures regarding com m ittee  positions  
occupied by them  in o th er com panies.

Remuneration of Directors

The details o f rem uneration paid to  W hole  tim e  D irector during  
2011 -12 are given below:

Mr. Philip John Rs.

Salary 15,00,000

Allowances & Perquisites 15,06,000

C ontribution to  Retiral Funds 9,360

Details of Sitting Fees paid to Directors

The C om pany does not pay any rem uneration to  any non­
executive directors.

No stock options have been granted to  any o f th e  non-executive  
directors.

The sitting fees paid to  non-executive  directors during th e  year 
as under:

Sum m ary Board and C om m ittee  M eetings

Nam e o f D irector Board Audit Total

Mr. M.R. Narayanan 50,000 10,000 60,000
Mr. M ohan Rao 40,000 10,000 50,000
M r A P Parigi 10,000 10,000
Grand Total 1,00,000 20,000 1,20,000

Board Meeting

During the  year under review, 5 board m eetings were held on
27.05.2011, 02.08.2011, 27.09.2011, 09.11.2011 and 10.02.2012 and 
m axim um  interval b etw een  any tw o  m eeting  was not m ore than  
120 days.

The com position o f th e  Board, a ttendance at Board M eetings  
(BM) held during the  financial year under review  and at th e  last 
Annual General M eeting  (AGM) and num ber o f Directorships and 
m em berships/chairm anships in public com panies (including the  
com pany) are given below.

N am e o f D irector C ategory

FY 2011-2012  
Attendance at

As on 31.03.2012

BM
Last
AGM

No. o f D irectorship in 
D om estic Public Com panies  

(including this com pany)

C om m ittee  position

M em b er Chairman

N.R. Panicker Non Executive  
Chairm an, Prom oter

5 Yes 06 02 01

M.R. Narayanan Non Executive, 
In dependent

5 Yes 02 03 Nil

A. M ohan Rao Non Executive, 
In dependent

4 Yes 02 01 02

Philip John Executive 5 Yes 01 Nil Nil

M r A P Parigi 
upto 26.12.2011

Non Executive, 
In dependent

1 n /a 10 Nil Nil

Board procedure

The Board is presented w ith  extensive in form ation on vital m atters  
affecting th e  w orking o f th e  com pany and risk assessment and  
m itigation procedures. A m ong others, this includes:

Operating plans, capital budgets and updates and reviews 
thereof.
Quarterly  results o fth e  com pany and its business segments. 
Financial statem ents such as cash flow, inventories, sundry 
debtors a n d /o r  o ther liabilities o f claims o f substantial nature. 
Perform ance against operating plans.
Risks faced and steps taken to  m itigate /m in im ize the  risks. 
M inutes o f m eeting o f audit com m ittee and other com m ittees. 
Details o f any jo in t venture or collaboration agreem ent. 
D evelopm ent in th e  industrial and hum an relations front.

Im portant show cause, dem and and penalty notices. 
M aterially relevant defaults in financial obligations to  and by 
the  com pany or substantial non paym ent o f goods sold by the  
company.
Significant effluent or pollution problems.
Any issue which involves possible public or product liability 
claims o f a substantial nature.
Foreign exchange exposure and steps taken by m anagem ent 
to  lim it the risks o f adverse exchange rate m ovem ent. 
Proposal for diversification, investm ent, disinvestments and 

restructuring and
Com pliance o f all laws applicable to  the  com pany including 
requirements o f listing agreem ent w ith  stock exchange.
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Attendance of last annual general meeting

All Directors o f th e  C om pany a tten ded  the  last Annual General 
M eeting  held on 27th Septem ber 2011.

Com position o f com m ittees o f d irector and their a ttendance at 
the  m eetings.

The Board has constitu ted com m ittees o f D irectors to take  
in form ed decisions in th e  best interest o f the  Com pany. These 
com m ittees m onitor th e  activities falling w ith in  the ir scope o f 
reference. The Board's com m ittees are as follows.

Audit committee

The A udit C om m ittee  has been m andated  w ith  the  same term s  
o f reference as specified in Clause 49  o f th e  Listing A greem ent 
w ith  Stock Exchange and covers all the  aspects stipulated by the  
SEBI Guidelines. The term s o f reference also fully conform  to  the  
requirem ents o f Section 292A o f th e  Com panies Act, 1956.

Composition

The A udit C om m ittee  o f Directors comprises 2 in dependent  
directors and one non- executive Chairm an o f w hom  ail have  
relevant finance and aud it exposure.

D uring th e  period under review, 4  A udit C om m ittee  M eetings  
w ere held on 27.05.2011,02.08.2011,09.11.2011 and 10.02.2012

The com position o f the  A udit C om m ittee  and their a ttendance at 
its m eetings is given below.

Com position
A. M ohan Rao 

Chairm an
N.R. Panicker 

M em b er
M.R. Narayanan  

M em b er

N um ber o f
m eetings
atten ded

03 04 04

The scope o f th e  C om m ittee  includes:-

a. Overseeing th e  com pany's financial reporting  process and the  
disclosure o f its financial in form ation, to  ensure th a t th e  financial 
statem ents are correct, sufficient and credible;

b. R ecom m ending th e  appo in tm ent/rem o va l o f external 
auditors, fixing audit fees and approving paym ents for any other 
services;

c. Approving fees for non-aud it consulting / services provided by 
th e  firms o f s tatu tory  auditors;

d. Review ing w ith  th e  m an ag em ent th e  periodic financial 
statem ents before  submission to  th e  Board, focusing prim arily on:

Any changes in accounting policies and practices; 
Qualifications in draft audit report;
Significant adjustm ents arising out o f audit;
Com pliance w ith  accounting standards;
Com pliance w ith  Stock Exchange and legal requirem ents  
concerning financial statements;
Any related party transactions i.e. transactions o fth e  com pany  
of m aterial nature, w ith  th e  prom oters or th e  m anagem ent, 
the ir subsidiaries or relatives etc. tha t m ay have a potential 
conflict w ith  th e  interests o fth e  com pany at large;

e . Reviewing w ith  the  m anagem ent, external and internal

auditors, the  adequacy o f internal control systems and 
recom m ending im provem ents to  the m anagem ent;

f. Discussing w ith  internal auditor any significant findings and 
fo llow -up thereon.

g. Discussing w ith  statutory auditors before the  audit 
commences, the  nature and scope o f audit, as well as conduct 
pos-audit discussions to ascertain any areas o f concern;

All the  audit com m ittee  m eetings w ere usually a tten ded  by the  
Chairm an and m em bers o f th e  C om m ittee , internal auditors and 
statutory auditors and th e  Divisional Heads.

Remuneration and compensation committee

The rem uneration and com pensation com m ittee  o fth e  com pany  
is em p ow ered  to  review  the  rem uneration o f w h o le -tim e  directors 
including annual increm ent and commission a fter review ing their 
perform ance.

The R em uneration Policy fo llow ed by th e  com pany takes into  
consideration, th e  perform ance o f th e  W h ole tim e Directors and 
Senior Executives, on certain param eters. The Rem uneration  
C om m ittee  comprises 3 (including the  Chairman o f the  
C om m ittee) N on-Executive Directors.

During th e  year under review, One Rem uneration C om m ittee  
m eeting was held. The com position o f the  Rem uneration  
C om m ittee  is g iven below .

Composition
N.R. Panicker 

Chairman
A. Mohan Rao 

M em ber
M.R. Narayanan 

M em ber

Num ber of
meetings
attended

01 01 01

The Chairman o fth e  R em uneration C om m ittee  was present at the  
last Annual General M eeting .

The com pany has com plied w ith  all the  non-m andatory  
requirem ents under Clause 49 regarding the  Rem uneration  
Com m ittee .

Information pursuant to Clause 491V (G) of the Listing 
Agreement:

A brie f resum e and nam e o f th e  com panies in which Directors, 
w ho are being re-appo in ted , hold Directorship /  s Com m ittee  
M em berships are given below:

1. Mr. NRPanicker-Chairm an

Mr. N.R. Panicker is an IT professional w ith  30 years o f experience; 
he is th e  Founder and Chairm an o f Accel Lim ited, the  main 
prom oter o f Accel Transmatic. Also the  Chairman & M anaging  
Director o f Accel Frontline Limited.

Mr. N.R. Panicker holds th e  fo llow ing Directorships /  C om m ittee  
Mem berships.

Mr. N.R. Panicker holds 525,986 equ ity  shares o fth e  company. 

Name of the Companies Nature of interest

1. Accel Limited Promoter & Director
2. Accel Frontline Limited Chairman and Managing

Director
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3. Accel Tele.net Limited Director
4. Accel IT Resources Limited Director
5. Accel Frontline Services Ltd. Director
6. Accel Systems Group Inc., USA Director
7. ACL Systems &Technologies Pte Ltd. Director 

Singapore
8. Accel Infotech FZE, Dubai Director
9. Network Programs USA Inc., USA Director
10. Network Programs Japan Inc., USA Director
11. Network Programs

Kabushiki Kaisha, Japan Director

Mr. S.T. Prabhu, C om pany Secretary w h o  is th e  Com pliance O fficer 
can be contacted at:

(a) For routine m atters:

(b) For Redressal o f C om plaints and G rievances:

Chennai 
Third Floor,
Accel House
75, Nelson M anickam  Road 
Aminjikarai, Chennai 600029.

Tel. No. :(044) 4225 2200  
Telefax. No. :(044) 2374 1271 
E-Mail.-stprabhu@ accel-india.com

The status o f the  to ta l num ber o f Investor com plaints redressed 
during th e  year is as follows:

Received 9

Replied 9

Trivandrum
T.C. 1 7 /2 7  Tel. N o.:(0471) 2 34  2215 /  234  2265
Jagathy Fax N o.:(0471) 234  2208
Trivandrum  695014 E -M ail:stprabhu@ transm aticsytem s.com

General Body Meeting
Location and tim e  o f General M eetings

Year Type Date Venue Time

2 0 0 2 - 0 3 AGM 30.09.2003 Lakshmi Chambers, III Floor, Vazhuthacaud, Trivandrum 12.30 pm

2 0 0 3 - 0 4 EGM 09.07.2004 Salvation Army, Red Shield Guest House, Kowdiar, Trivandrum 11.00 am

2003 -  04
C ourt Convened  
G eneral m eeting

09.07.2004 Salvation Army, Red Shield Guest House, Kowdiar, Trivandrum 02 pm  to  4  pm .

2 0 0 3 - 0 4 AGM 14.03.2005 Lakshmi Chambers, II Floor, Vazhuthacaud, Trivandrum 11.30 am

2 0 0 4 - 0 5 AGM 19.08..2005 USHESTECH,311,Technopark, Trivandrum 02.00 pm

200 5 -0 6 AGM 15.09.2006
C onference Room, com fort Inn Grand, Statue, 

Thiruvananthpuram
02.00 pm

200 6 -0 7 AGM 24.09.2007 M alabar Hall, Park Centre, Technopark, Trivandrum 03.00 pm

2007 -08 AGM 27.09.2008 M alabar Hall, Park Centre, Technopark, Trivandrum 11.00 am

2 007-08 EGM 04.12.2007 M alabar Hall, Park Centre, Technopark, Trivandrum 03.00 pm

2 00 8 -0 9 AGM 27.07.2009 M alabar Hall, Park Centre, Technopark, Trivandrum 12.00 Noon

2009-10 AGM 27.09.2010
Conference Hall, Park Centre, KINFRA Film & V ideo Park, 

Kazhakootam , Trivandrum  695 585
11.00 am

2009-10 EGM 17.12.2010
Conference Room, Ushus Technologies, III Floor 311 NILA, 

Technopark, Trivandrum
11.30 am

2010-11 AGM 27.09.2011
C onference Hall, Park Centre, KINFRA Film & V ideo Park, 

Kazhakootam , Trivandrum  695 585
11.30 am

Other disclosures

1) The com pany has not en tered  into any m ateria lly  significant 
transactions during th e  year, which could have a potentia l 
conflict o f interest b e tw e e n  th e  com pany and its prom oters, 
Directors, m an ag em ent and /  o f the ir relatives, etc o th er than  the  
transactions entered in to  in th e  norm al course o f business. Details  
o f related party  transactions entered  in to  in th e  norm al course o f 
business are given in Notes to  Accounts.

2) D uring th e  year under review, no penalties or strictures  
w ere im posed on th e  com pany by th e  stock exchange w ere th e  
com pany's shares are listed, SEBI or any statu tory  authority, on any  
m atter relating to  capital markets.

Compliance with mandatory requirements:

The com pany has com plied w ith  the  m andatory  requirem ents o f 
th e  C ode o f C orporate Governance as stipulated under clause 49

o fth e  Listing A greem ent w ith  th e  Stock Exchange. The com pany  
has also com plied w ith  th e  requirem ents o f am ended Clause 49  
after it cam e in to  force.

Means of communication

(i) Financial results and annual reports e tc :

The Q uarterly  U naudited  Financial Results and th e  Annual 
A udited Financial Results as approved and taken on record by 
th e  Board o f D irectors o f th e  C om pany are published during the  
year under review  in leading national new spaper in English and  
regional new spaper in M alayalam  and are also sent im m ed iate ly  
to  th e  Stock Exchange in which th e  Shares o f th e  C om pany are 
listed. These results are also placed on Com pany's w ebsite. The  
C om pany is not in practice o f sending half-yearly Report to  each 
household o f Shareholders.

The com pany has its ow n w ebsite  w w w.acceltransm atic.com

1 2 )

mailto:stprabhu@accel-india.com
mailto:stprabhu@transmaticsytems.com
http://www.acceltransmatic.com
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w here in  official news release and other related in form ation are 
available.

Notices relating to A nnual General M eetings and Extraordinary  
General M eetings, if any, are sent to  th e  M em bers at their 
registered address and em ail addresses as and w h ere  provided to  
th e  com pany.

(ii) Management discussion and analysis rep ort:

The M an ag em en t Discussion and Analysis Report set o u t in 
A nnexure II form s part o fth e  Annual Report.

Non mandatory requirements 

Revised sebi guidelines on corporate governance

SBI had notified  on O ctob er 29, 2004, a revised /u p d a te d  set o f 
Guidelines relating to  Corporate Governance which have been  
incorporated in th e  Com pany's Listing A greem ent w ith  th e  Stock 
Exchanges.

The C om pany is fu lly  com plian t w ith  th e  revised SEBI Guidelines.

As per th e  latest d irective from  Securities Exchange Board o f 
India (SEBI), th e  transferor and th e  transferee have to  provide  
do cu m entary  evidence o f the ir PAN num bers to  the  e ffec t the  

Share transfer.

Code of conduct

The Board o f Directors has a dop ted  th e  code o f business conduct 
and ethics for Directors and Senior M anagem en t. Th e  said code  
has been  com m unicated to  th e  D irectors and M em bers o f the  
Senior M anagem en t. The code has also been posted on the  
C om pany W eb site w w w .acceltransm atic.com

Compliance certificate of the auditors

The statu tory  auditors have certified th a t th e  C om pany has 
com plied w ith  th e  conditions o f C orporate Governance as 
stipu lated in clause 49  o f th e  listing agreem ent w ith  th e  stock 
exchange and th e  sam e is annexed to  th e  Annual Report.

The certificate from  th e  statu tory  auditors will be sent to  th e  stock 
exchanges along w ith  th e  annual report o fth e  com pany.

General shareholder information

4. Listing of Shares

The Shares o fth e  Company are presently listed on Mumbai Stock Exchange 
Ltd at Mumbai. The Annual Listing Fees have been paid to  the Stock 
Exchange fo r Financial Year 2012 -  2013.

5. Stock Market Codes

(i) Scrip Code
(ii) Abbreviated Name
(iii) Demat ISIN Number

6. Stock Market Data

Month High Price Low Price No. o f Shares

Apr-11 25.30 17.90 50,485

May-11 22.00 17.30 41,092

Jun-11 20.45 14.00 98.574

Jul-11 19.90 17.00 43,378

Aug-11 19.70 13.45 48,661

Sep-11 18.50 13.01 33,508

Oct-11 18.85 13.15 1,19,125

Nov-11 17.40 11.90 1,87,208

Dec-11 14.74 11.11 39,393

Jan-12 14.50 11.00 29,898

Feb-12 13.50 11.41 36,365

Mar-12 12.77 9.08 24,350

Source:BSE India

7. Registrars & transfer agents (RTA)

M/S. Integrated Enterprises India Limited, 
Kences Towers, 2nd Floor,
No.1 Ramakrishna Street, North Usman Road 
T.Nagar, Chennai -  600017 
Tel.: 044-2814 0801 -0 80 3  
Email: sureshbabu@iepindia.com

o i /<ry<r 
ACCEL TRANS 
INE258C01020

1.Annual General Meeting

Date and Time : Tuesday, 14th August 2012 at 12.00 Noon
Venue Conference Hall, Park Centre

KINFRA Film & Video Park 
Kazhakootam
Thiruvananthapuram -  695 585.

2. Financial Calendar
Financial Year 01st April 2011 to  31st March 2012

Results fo r the  Q ua rte r: 
30th June 
30th September 
31st December 
31st March

Before 15th August 
Before 15th November 
Before 15th February 
Before 31st May 
(Audited figures) as per Stock 
Exchange guidelines

3. Book Closure Dates : 6th August 2012 to  
14th August 2012 
(Both days inclusive)

13
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8. Distribution of shareholding and categories o f shareholders

March 31,2012 March 31, 2011

Category
No. o f Share 

holders
% o f Share 

Holders
No. o f 
Shares

% o f total 
equity

No. o f Share 
holders

% to  Share 
Holders

No. o f Shares
% o fto ta l 

equity

1 -5 0 0 6154 89.77 628951 5.70 6279 90.02 647844 5.87

501 -1000 269 3.92 224279 2.03 265 3.80 223118 2.02

1001 -2 0 0 0 190 2.77 289948 2.63 197 2.82 306647 2.78

2001 -  3000 64 0.93 168322 1.53 62 0.89 163506 1.48

3001 -4 0 0 0 29 0.42 104110 0.94 26 0.37 94751 0.86

4001 -5 0 0 0 37 0.54 173473 1.57 36 0.52 170666 1.55

5001 -  10000 46 0.67 355201 3.22 41 0.59 306070 2.77

10001 & above 67 0.98 9093117 82.38 69 0.99 9124799 82.67

TOTAL 6856 100.00 11037401 100.00 6975 100.00 11037401 100.00

9. Share holding Pattern as on 31st March 2012

Category
Code

Category of Shareholder
No of 
Share 

holders

Total 
Number of 

Shares

Number of 
shares held in 

dematerialized 
form

Total share holding as 
a percentage of total 

number of shares

Shares Pledges or 
otherwise encumbered

As a 
percentage
of (A+8J1

As a 
percentage 
o f (A+B+C)

Number of 
Shares

Asa
percentage

0) (ID (III) (IV) (V) (VI) (VII) (VIII)
(IX) = (VIII)/ 

(IV) *100

(A) Shareholding o f Promoter 
and Promoter Group2

(a) Individuals/Hindu 
Undivided Family

1 525,986 525,986 4.76 4.76 - -

(b) Central Government / State Government(s) - - - - - -

(c) Bodies Corporate 1 5,630,000 5,630,000 51.01 51.01 1,300,000 23.09

(d) Financial Institutions/ Banks - - - - - -

(e) Any Other (Specify) Relatives of Promoters 
/Subsidiary

3 300,000 300,000 2.72 2.72 - -

Sub-Total (A)(1) 5 6,455,986 6,455,986 58.49 58.49 1,300,000 20.14

(2) Foreign

(a) Individuals (Non Resident 
Individuals) /Foreign Individuals

- - - -

(b) Bodies Corporate - - -

(c) Institutions - - - - -

(d) Any Other (Specify) - - - - -

Sub-Total (A)(2) - - - - -

Total Shareholding of Promoter 
and PromoterGroup (A)= (A)(1)+((A)(2)

5 6,455,986 6,455,986 58.49 58.49 1,300,000 20.14

(B) Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds / UTI 4 2,144 - 0.02 0.02

(b) Financial Institutions / Banks 4 520 400 0.01 0.01

(c) Central Government /  State Government(s) - - - - -

(d) Venture Capital Funds - - - - -

(e) Insurance Companies - - - - -

(f) Foreign Institutional Investors - - - - -

(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - -

(h) Any Other (Specify) - - • - -



ACCEL TRANSMATIC LIMITED
Annual Report 2011-12 ACCEL

Sub-Total (B)(1) 8 2,664 400 0.02 0.02

(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corporate 98 468,562 463,962 4.25 4.25

(b) Individuals

i. Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs.1 lakh. 6,664

1,846,764 1,552,246 16.73 16.73

ii. Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital excess of Rs.1 lakh.

57 2,106,308 2,047,808 19.08 19.08

(c) Any Other (Trust /  Clearing Member-details 
enclosed)

5 352 352 0.01 0.01

1 Clearing members

2 Corporate CM/TM - Client Margin A/c 4 3,139 3,139 0.03 0.03

3 Corporate CM/TM - Client Beneficiary A/c 14 16,546 16,546 0.15 0.15

4 Trust 1 1,37,080 1,37,080 1.24 1.24

Sub-Total (B(2) 6843 4,578,751 4,221,133 41.49 41.49

Total Public Share holding (B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 6851 4,581,415 4,221,133 41.51 41.51

Total (A) + (B) 6856 11,037,401 10,677,519 100.00 100.00 1,300,000 11.78

Shares held by Custodians and against which 
Depository Receipts have been issued

- - ' -

GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 6856 11,037,401 10,677,519 100.00 100.00 1,300,000 11.78

N o te : As approved by the  Board o f D irectors o f th e  com pany on a request received from  Mr. T. Ravindran, an erstw hile  Prom oter and 
as in tim ated  to  th e  Stock Exchange, Mr. T. Ravindran has been considered as a N on-P rom oter and added  in th e  Public H old ing category.

10. Statutory compliance

D uring th e  year, th e  C om pany has com plied w ith  all applicable provisions, filed all returns /  form s and furnished all relevant particulars 
as required under th e  Com panies act, 1956 and allied Acts and Rules, th e  Securities and Exchange Board o f India (SEBI) Regulations and 
th e  Listing A greem ents w ith  Stock Exchanges.

11. Share transfer system

Transfer o f shares in physical form  has been delegated  by the  
Board to  certain officials o f the  Registrars, to  facilitate speedy  
service to  th e  shareholders. Shares sent fo r transfer in physical 
form  are registered by th e  Registrar and Share Transfer Agents  
w ith in  30 days o f receipt o f th e  docum ents, if found  in order. 
Shares under ob jection are returned w ith in  tw o  weeks. All 
requests fo r dem ateria lization o f shares are processed, if found  
in order and confirm ation is given to  th e  respective depositories,
i.e., National Securities D epository Lim ited (NSDL) and Central 
D epository Services Lim ited (CDSL) w ith in  15 days.

12. Investor services

Investor com plaints received and replied during th e  year 2011 -  
2012 :

Nature of Queries Received Replied

Non receipt o f C ertificate a fter NIL NIL
transfer/capita l reduction

Procedure fo r Transmission NIL NIL

C orrection in Certificate NIL NIL

Non receipt o f In ter/D iv id en d NIL NIL
W a rra n t/C h eq u e /D D

General queries 2 2

Change o f address /  Bank M andate 5 5

Procedure for loss o f share certificate 2 2

Total 9 9

As at 31st M arch 2012, NIL investor com plaints w ere pending. As at 
31st M arch 2012, NIL share transfers and NIL dem at requests were  
pending .

The A ggregate  Promoters and Non -  p rom oter shareholding o f 
th e  C om pany as at 31st M arch 2012 is as shown below:

C ategory No. o f 
Shares

%  to  
total 

paid up  
capital

Shares held  
in D em ateri­
alized Form

Shares 
held in 

Physical 
Form

Prom oters 6,455,986 58.49 6,455,986 NIL

Non
Promoters

4,581,415 41.51 4,221,533 359,882

Total 11,037,401 100.00 10,677,519 359,882

13. Dematerilisation of shares and liquidity

As on 31st M arch 2012, 96.74%  o f the  company's Equity Capital 
are held in dem ateria lized form  w ith  NSDL and CDSL. Trading in 
equity  shares o fth e  C om pany is p erm itted  only in dem aterialized  
form , as per th e  notification issued by th e  Securities and Exchange 
Board o f India (SEBI).

14. Investor Correspondence

(a) For all routine correspondence regarding transfer and 
transmission o f shares, split, consolidation and issue of 
duplicate /  renew ed share certificates should be addressed to  
th e  Com pany's Registrars and Share Transfer Agents at their 
fo llow ing address.
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M/S. In tegrated Enterprises India Limited,
Kences Towers, 2nd Floor,
No.1 Ramakrishna Street, North Usman Road
Chennai -  600017
Tel: 044  28140801 /  0 8 0 2 /0 8 0 3
Contact Person :Mr.Suresh Babu /  Mr. Sriram

(b) For Com plaints /  grievances, if any, should be addressed t o :

The Com pany Secretary,
Accel Transmatic Limited,
17 /  27,Jagathy, Trivandrum  -  695 014
Tel.: 0471 - 2 3 4  2 2 1 5 /2 3 4  2265 Fax:0471 - 2 3 4  2208
Email:stprabhu@transmaticsystems.com

15. Company website

For any fu rth er in form ation on th e  Com pany, please visit 
Com pany's website w w w .acceltransm atic.com

Annexure -  IV to the Director's report

Certificate o f com pliance from  auditors as stipulated under clause 
49  o fth e  listing agreem ent o fth e  stock exchanges in India.

To
The Members,
Accel Transmatic Limited.

1. We have exam ined the com pliance conditions o f Corporate 
Governance by AccelTransmatic Limited fo rth e  period ended  
31st M arch 2012 as stipulated in Clause 49 o f the Listing 
A greem ent o fth e  said com pany w ith  the  Stock Exchanges.

2. The com pliance o f conditions o f Corporate Governance is 
the  responsibility o f the M anagem ent. Our exam ination  
is lim ited to  procedures and im plem entation there of, 
adopted by the com pany for ensuring the com pliance o fth e  
conditions o fth e  Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression o f opinion on the  financial statem ents of 
the  Company.

3. In our opinion and to  the best o f our inform ation and 
according to  the  explanations given to us, we certify that 
the  com pany has com plied w ith  the  conditions of Corporate  
Governance as stipulated in the above-m entioned Listing 
Agreem ent.

4. We state th a t such com pliance is neither an assurance as 
to  the  future viability o f the  com pany nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness w ith  which the  M anagem ent has conducted  
the affairs o fth e  Company.

For Varma & Varma 
Chartered Accountants  
F.R.N.4532S

P lace:Chennai P.R. Prasanna Varma F.C.A
D a te : M ay 2 9 ,2 01 2  M em bership N o :25854

Partner,

Annexure V to the Director's report 

Directors responsibility statement

Pursuant to  the  requ irem ent o f Section 217 (2AA) o fth e  Companies  
Act, 1956, and based on the  representations received from  the  
operating  m an ag em ent, your D irectors hereby confirm  that:

(a) That in the  preparation o f the  annual accounts for the  
year ended M arch 31, 2012, the  applicable accounting  
standards have been follow ed alongw ith  proper explanation  
relating to  m aterial departures.

(b) That such accounting policies as m entioned in Note 1 of 
the Notes to the Accounts have been selected and applied  
consistently.and judgem ents and estimates have been m ade  
tha t are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view  of the  state o f affairs o f the  Com pany as at 31st March 
2012 and o fth e  profit o fth e  Com pany for the  year ended on 
tha t date.

(c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the  
m aintenance o f adequate accounting records in accordance 
w ith  the provisions o f the Companies Act, 1956 for 
safeguarding the  assets o f the Com pany and for preventing  
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

(d) The annual accounts have been prepared on going  
concern basis.

Annexure VI to the Director's report 

Certification to the board by the Chairman and the Company 
Secretary

We, N R Panicker, Chairman and S T Prabhu, C om pany Secretary o f  
Accel Transmatic Lim ited, certify  that:

1. 1. We have review ed the  financial statem ents for the year 
ended 31.03.2012, and that to  the  best o f our know ledge and 
belief:

a) These statem ents do not containing any m aterially untrue 
statem ent or om it any m aterial fact or contain statem ents that 
m ight be misleading;

b) These statem ents give a true and fair v iew  o f the  state of 
affairs o f the  com pany and o f the  results o f operations and 
cash flows. The financial statem ents have been prepared in 
conform ity, in all m aterial respects, w ith  the existing generally  
accepted accounting principles including Accounting 
Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the ■ :st o f our know ledge and belief, no 
transactions entered into by the  com pany during the year 
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative o fth e  company's code 
of conduct.

3. We accept overall responsibility for the company's internal 
control system for financial reporting. This is m onitored by the  
internal audit function, which encompasses the  exam ination  
and evaluation o f the adequacy and effectiveness. Internal 
audit works w ith  all levels o f m anagem ent and statutory 
auditors, and reports significant issues to the Audit C om m ittee  
o fth e  Board. The auditors and audit com m ittee  are appraised 
o f any corrective action taken w ith  regard to  significant 
deficiencies and m aterial weakness.

4. We have indicated to  the auditors and to the  audit com mittee:

a) Significant changes in internal control over financial 
reporting during the  year.

b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the  year;

c) Instances o f significant fraud o f which w e have become

mailto:stprabhu@transmaticsystems.com
http://www.acceltransmatic.com
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aware o f and which involve m anagem ent or o ther employees  
w ho have significant role in the  company's internal control 
system over financial reporting.

However, during th e  year there  w ere  no such changes or instances.

N R  Panicker S T P rabhu
C hairm an C om pany secretary

Place: Chennai 
D ate : 29.05.2012

Annexure VIII to the Director's report

Persons constitu ting G roup com ing w ith in  th e  defin ition o f  
"group" fo r th e  purpose o f  th e  Regulation 3(1 )(e )(i) o f SEBI 
(Substantial Acquisition o f Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 
1997, include th e  fo llow ing .

SI. No. Name o fth e  Group Companies

01. Accel Lim ited

02 N.R.Panicker

03 Sreekumari Panicker

04 Shruthi Panicker

05 Harikrishna R

06 Accel Frontline Lim ited

07 Accel Frontline Services Lim ited

08 Accel IT Resources Lim ited

09 Accel Media Ventures Lim ited

10 Accel Tele.Net Lim ited

11 Network Programs USA Inc., USA

12 Network Programs Japan Inc., USA

13 Network Programs KK, Japan

14 ACL Systems & Technologies Pte. Ltd. Singapore

15 Accel Frontline FZE., Dubai

16 Accel Systems Group Inc, USA

17 Accel North America Inc., USA
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Auditors' report
To,
The Members,
Accel Transmatic Limited.

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Accel Transmatic 
Limited as at 31st March 2012, the Profit and Loss Account and 
the Cash Flow Statem ent for the year ended on that date annexed 
thereto.These financial statements are the responsibility of the  
company's m anagement. Our responsibility is to  express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in India. These standards require that we  
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes, examining on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the  
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the  
accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by m anagem ent as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 as 
amended by Companies (Auditor's Report) (Amendment) Order, 
2004 issued by the Government o f India in terms of Section 
227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, w e give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 4 and 5 o fth e  
said Order;

4. W ithout qualifying our opinion attention is invited to Note No.
2. As stated therein, the Company has suffered cash loss from  
its operations during the year, w ithout considering the profit on 
transfer o f its Software Division.The accumulated loss is more 
than 50% o f its Net worth. This raises concerns about the ability 
of the Company to continue as a going concern. However, in 
view o fth e  facts stated in the said notes, the Accounts have been 
drawn up on a going concern basis.

5. Further to our comments stated above, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which 
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the  
purposes o f our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the company so far as appears from our 
examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow 
Statement dealt w ith by this report are in agreem ent with the  
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the  
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) o f Section 
201 o f the Companies Act, 1956;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the  
directors, and taken on record by the Board o f Directors, we 
report that none o f the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 
2012, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of 
sub-section (1) of Section 274 o fth e  Companies Act, 1956;

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read with the  
notes on the accounts attached thereto, give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the  
company as at 31st March 2012;

ii. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the  
year ended on that date;

and
iii. in the case o f the cash flow statement, of the cash flows for the  

year ended on that date.
For Varma & Varma 

Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N.004532S

Place: Chennai P.R.Prasanna Varma F.C.A
D ate: 29.05.2012 M No:25854

Partner

Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our audit
Report of even date

1)
a. The company is maintaining records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details of fixed assets.

b. The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified 
by the m anagement during the year, which, in our opinion is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the 
nature of assets and as per the information and explanation 
furnished to us, no material discrepancies have been noticed on 
such verification.

c. There has not been any disposal of any substantial portion of 
fixed assets o fth e  company during the year, which would affect 
the status o fth e  company as a going concern, except as stated in 
Note No.23 attached to the Accounts.

2) The inventory of the Company at the year end consists o f Digital
Assets value Rs. Nil (Intangible Assets) under contract/co - 
production only and hence, the question o f physical verification 
of inventory does not arise. Hence the Paragraph 4(ii)(a),4(ii)(b) & 
4(ii)(c) of Companies (Auditor's Report) (Amendment) Order are 
not com mented upon by us.

As explained to us, the Company has not advanced any amounts 
to Companies, Firms or other parties covered in the Register 
maintained under Section 301 o fth e  Companies Act, 1956 and 
hence, relative reporting requirement of Para 4 (iii (a) to (d)) of 
the Order is not applicable and not com mented upon.

b. The Company has taken unsecured loans from parties /  
companies in which Directors are interested covered in the  
register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956. The number of parties and the amount involved are given 
below:

N um ber o f Parties
M axim um  A m ount 

Outstanding
Balance as on 

31.03.2012

3 12,93,94,333/- 7,86 ,73,333/-

c. In respect of unsecured loans taken as above, in our opinion 
and according to the information and explanation furnished to 
us, the rate o f interest, where applicable, and other terms and 
conditions of loans are not prima facie prejudicial to  the interest 
o fth e  company.

d. As per the information and explanations given to us, the payment 
of principal amount and interest thereon is as stipulated.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations

1 8
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given to us, the internal control system for the purchase of fixed 
assets and for the sale of services are generally commensurate 
with the size o fth e  company and nature o f its business.There are 
no major weaknesses in internal control of a continuing nature.

5)
a. According to the information and explanations provided by 

the m anagement, we are of the opinion that the particulars 
of contracts or arrangements that need to be entered into the  
register maintained under section 301 o f the Companies Act, 
1956 have been so entered.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance 
to  contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained 
under section 301 o fth e  Companies Act, 1956 with the aforesaid 
parties exceeding value of Rupees Five Lakhs in respect of each 
such party which have been entered into during the financial 
year are at prices which are reasonable having regard to the  
prevailing market prices at the relevant tim e

6) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 
furnished to us, the company has complied with the directions 
issued by the Reserve Bank o f India and the provisions of Section 
58A and 58AA and other relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public.

7) The Internal audit of the company was conducted during the  
year, by a firm of Chartered Accountants, the scope and coverage 
o f which is commensurate with the size of the Company and 
nature o f its business.

8) As per the information and explanation furnished to us, Cost 
records u/s 209(1 )(d) o fth e  Companies Act, 1956 have not been 
prescribed in respect o fth e  Services o fth e  Company.

9.)
a. There were delays in depositing undisputed statutory dues 

including Provident fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Service Tax & Sales Tax with the appropriate authorities during the 
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect o f Income 
Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Sales tax, Excise duty, Customs Duty, 
Cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding at the  
year end for a period of more than six months from the date they  
became payable, other than as stated below

b. As per the information and explanation furnished to us, there  
were no dues o f sales-tax, income-tax, wealth-tax, service 
tax, excise duty, customs duty and cess which have not been 
deposited on account o f any dispute, as at the year end, except 
the following

3 PF& 2,171,000 Flonorable High Court Of
Others Kerala -  Rs.10.59 lacs, Registrar

-  EPF Appellate Tribunal -
Rs.7.77 lacs, Suit in Civil Court
Chennai -  Rs.0.64 lacs, Suit in
civil court Kerala -  Rs.2.71 lacs.

10) The company's accumulated loss at the end of the financial 
year is more than fifty per cent of net worth of the company. 
The company has incurred cash loss during the year but has not 
incurred during the im m ediately preceding financial year.

11) As per the information and explanations furnished to us and on 
our verification o f records of the company, there have been no 
delays in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks.

12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, and based on the documents and records produced 
to  us, the company has not granted any loans or advances on 
the basis o f security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and 
other securities.

13) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the nature of activities o fth e  company 
does not attract any special statute applicable to chit fund and 
nidhi/ mutual benefit fun d / societies.

14) In our opinion, the company is not dealing or trading in shares, 
securities, debentures or other investments, and accordingly, the 
relative reporting requirements of the order are not applicable 
to  the company.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has given a corporate guarantee to a bank on 
behalf of a company in which the Directors are interested for 
Rs.3,50,00,000/- for availing loan from the banks by the said 
company, the terms o f conditions o f which are not prima facie 
prejudicial to  the interest o fth e  company.

16) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us,Term Loans availed during the year has 
been utilised for the purpose for which they have been availed.

17) According to the information and explanations given to us and 
on an overall verification o f the attached Balance Sheet of the 
company, we report that the funds raised by the company on 
short-term basis have not been used to finance long-term assets 
except to the extent of Rs.8,54,52,739/-.

18) During the year, the company has not made any preferential 
allotm ent of shares to parties or companies covered in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

19) The company does not have any outstanding debentures as at 
the year-end.

20) The company has not raised any money by way of public issues 
during the year.

21) According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during 
the course o f our audit.

For Varma &Varma 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N.004532SSI

No:
Particulars Amount 

involved (Rs)
Forum where Dispute is 

pending

1 Income tax 
Demands

13,595,330 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
Kochi

2 Customs
Duty

3,388,000 Honorable High Court Of 
Kerala

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars
Outstanding at the  

end o fth e  year
Payable for m ore  
than 6 months

Professional Tax 927 ,718 /- 887 ,498 /-

Employees State 
Insurance

361 ,494 /- 265 ,157 /-

Provident fund 173,752/- 18,348/-

Tax D educted at 
Source

6,056,305 /- 2 ,853,040/-

Place: Chennai P.R Prasanna Varma F.C.A
D a te : 29.05.2012 M No: 25854

Partner
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Particulars Note

Equity and liabilities
1. Shareholders'fund

a. Share capital 3

b. Reserves and surplus 4

c. M oney received against share warrants 3

2. Non - current liabilities

a. Long-term  borrowings 5

b. Long-term  provisions 6  (a)

3. Current liabilities

a. Short-term  borrowings 7

b. Trade payables 8

c. O ther current liabilities 9

d. Short te rm  provisions 6  (b)

Total

B. Assets

Non - current assets

a. Fixed assets 1 o

(i) Tangible assets 10(1)

(ii) In tangib le assets 10 (II)

(iii) Capital work-in-progress 10 (III)

(iv) In tangib le assets under developm ent 10 (III)

b. Non - current investments 11

c. Trade receivables 13

d. Long term  loans and advances 15 (a)

2. Current assets

a. Inventories 12

b. Trade receivables 13

c. Cash and bank balances 14

d. Short-term  loans and advances 15(b)

e. O ther current assets 15(c)

Total

Sum m ary o f significant accounting policies and notes to  accounts 01 -24  
The accom panying notes are an integral part o fth e  financial statements. 
This is the  Balance Sheet referred to  in our report o f even date

Varma and Varma 
Firm registration No.4532S  
Chartered Accountants

20 !

P R Prasanna Varm a F.C.A 
M em bership n o : 25854  
Partner

Place: Chennai

4
ACCEL

March 31,2012 March 31,2011

110,374,010 110,374,010

(63,664,602) (66,495,339)

4,166,250 4,166,250

50,875,658 48,044,921

96,951,912 160,412,266

1,449,470 13,633,788

98,401,382 174,046,054

25,026,859 47,285,593

13,586,262 40,557,928

75,976,839 84,101,088

620,685 303,312

115,210,645 172,247,921

264,487,685 394,338,896

69,784,705 108,787,542

134,817,812 61,427,125

- 4,332,746

- 80,825,603

50,396 6,466,543

23,674,553 -

4,850,225 17,165,559

233,177,691 279,005,118

- 4,442,705

5,055,065 66,362,333

4,538,141 2,972,235

20,926,486 10,624,987

790,302 30,931,518

31,319,994 115,333,778

264,487,685 394,338,896

For and on behalf o f th e  board o f directors

N R Panicker A M ohan Rao
Chairman Director

Philip John S TP rabhu
W hole tim e Director Com pany Secretary
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Profit and loss statem ent for the year ended
(All am ounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherw ise stated)

Note March 31,2012 March 31,2011

A. Continuing operations 

1. Income

a. Revenue from  operations 16 20,925,838 192,154,238

b. O th er incom e 17 2,971,907 4,530,838

2. Total revenue 23,897,745 196,685,076

3. Expenses

a. Cost o f services 18 12,789,494 3,762,269

b. Changes in digital inventory (increase)/decrease 19 4,442,705 (395,700)

c. Em ployee benefit expenses 20 23,171,898 97,729,166

d. O th er expenses 21 57,364,354 70,743,990

4.Total expenses 97,768,451 171,839,725

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation .amortisation and (73,870,706) 24,845,351
exceptional items (EBITDA) (1-4)

5. Depreciation & am ortisation 10 50,593,347 45,116,515

Less: recoupm ent from  revaluation reserve 58,455 58,455

N et depreciation & am ortisation 50,534,892 45,058,060

6. Finance cost 22 29,848,089 22,302,815

7. Add : Exceptional items (Income) 23 140,554,776 6,000,000

8. Profit/( loss) before tax (13,698,911) (36,515,524)

9. A.Tax expenses

Current tax . .

Defered tax - -

Total tax expenses - -

10 Profit/I loss) for the year from continuing operations (A) (13,698,911) (36,515,524)

B. Discontinued operations

Profit/( loss) before tax from  discontinued operations

24

16,588,114 .

Tax expenses o f discontinued operations - -

Profit/( Loss) after tax from discontinued operations (B) 16,588,114 (36,515,524)

Profit/I Loss) for the period ( A - B ) 2,889,203 (36,515,524)

Basic Earning per equity  share (nom inal value o f share Rs.10 
(31st M arch 2011 Rs.10)

C om puted on th e  basis o f profit from  continuing operations (1.24) (3.31)

C om puted on th e  basis after excluding exceptional items (12.47) (3.85)

C om puted on the  basis o f total profit for th e  year 0.26 (3.31)

Diluted

C om puted on th e  basis o f profit from  continuing operations (1.23) (3.27)

C om puted on th e  basis a fter excluding exceptional items (12.32) (3.80)

C om puted on th e  basis o f total profit for the  year 0.26 (3.27)

Sum m ary o f significant accounting policies and notes to  accounts 01 -24  
The accom panying notes are an integral part o fth e  financial statements. 
This is th e  Profit & loss statem ent referred to  in our report o f even date

Varma and Varma
Firm registration No.4532S For and on behalf o f the  board o f directors
Chartered Accountants  

P R Prasanna Varm a F.C.A N R Panicker A M ohan Rao
M em bership  n o : 25854 Chairman Director
Partner 

Place: Chennai
Philip John 
W hole tim e Director

S TP rabhu  
Com pany Secretary
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Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from  continuing operations (13,698,911) (36,515,524)

Profit before tax from  discontinuing operations 16,588,114 -

Profit before tax 2,889,203 (36,515,524)

Non-cash adjustm ent to  reconcile profit before tax to  net cash flows

D ep rec ia tio n /am ortiza tion  on continuing operation 50,534,892 45,058,060

D epreciation/ am ortization on discontinuing operation 1,436,159 -

O ther w rite  o ff on ta n g ib le / in tangib le assets pertaining to continuing operation 27,419,881 2,646,026

Loss/ (profit) on sale o f fixed assets 6,366,029 13,236

Interest expense 30,906,383 22,302,815

Interest (income) (203,681) (459,115)

D ividend (income) (3,550) (3,195)

Operating profit before working capital changes 119,345,317 33,042,303

M ovem ents in working c a p ita l:

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (31,785,038) 22,592,989

Increase /  (decrease) in long-term  provisions (12,184,318) 8,520,892

Increase /  (decrease) in short-term  provisions 317,373 -

Increase/ (decrease) in o ther current liabilities (8,124,249) 22,936,562

Decrease /  (increase) in trade receivables 37,632,715 (8,413,235)

Decrease /  (increase) in inventories 4,442,705 (395,700)

Decrease /  (increase) in long-term  loans and advances 12,315,334 (8,697,464)

Decrease /  (increase) in short-term  loans and advances (10,301,499) 34,919,403

Decrease /  (increase) in other current assets 30,141,204 (7,975,688)

Cash generated from  /(used in) operations 141,799,544 96,530,062

Direct taxes paid (net o f refunds) - -

Net cash flow  fro m / (used in) operating activities (A) 141,799,544 96,530,062

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase o f fixed assets, including CWIP and capital advances (61,548,291) (69,827,830)

Proceeds from  sale o f fixed assets 30,258,451 -

Proceeds o f non-current investments 6,416,147 -

Interest received 203,681 459,115

Dividends received 3,550 3,195

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (21,777,259) (105,881,044)

Cash flows from  financing activities

Proceeds from  issuance o f equity share capital ( Share application M o n e y ) - 4,166,250

R epaym ent o f long-term  borrowings (63,460,354) (11,599,845)

R epaym ent o f short-term  borrowings (22,258,734) -

Interest paid (29,848,089) (22,302,815)

Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) (115,567,177) (29,736,410)

Net increase/fdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 1,565,906 (2,571,869)

Cash and cash equivalents at the  beginning o fth e  year 2,972,235 5,544,104



ACCEL TRANSMATIC LIMITED
Annual Report 2011-12 4

AC CEL

March 31,20112 March31,2011

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 17,477 78,574

W ith banks- on current account 2,463,893 244,959

- on deposit account 1,885,864 2,477,723

- unpaid dividend accounts 170,907 170,979

Total cash and cash equivalents 4,538,141 2,972,235

1) Cash and Cash Equivalents include Cash in Hand & remittances in transit, Balance w ith  Banks on current Accounts and Deposit 
Accounts.
2) The above Cashflow S tatem ent has been prepared under the  "Indirect M ethod" as set out in the  Accounting Standard on Cash Flow 
Statem ent [As-3] issued by the  Institute o f Chartered Accountants o f India.
3) Previous year figures have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary.
4) This is the  Cashflow Statem ent referred to in our report o f even date.

Varma and Varma
Firm registration N o.4532S

Chartered Accountants

P R Prasanna Varma F.C.A 
M em bership n o : 25854  
Partner

Place: Chennai 
Date: 29th  M ay 2012

Company Information:

Accel Transmatic Limited (the com pany) is a public lim ited  
com pany dom iciled in India and is listed in the Bombav  
stock exchange (BSE). The com pany presently offers anim a­
tion services from  its studios in Chennai and Trivandrum .The  
com pany had dem erged its technology business to its group  
com pany M /s Accel Frontline Limited (AFL) effective August
15,2011 (refer note 23)

Note: 01: Statement of significant accounting policies
and practices

1.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statem ents have been prepared to  com ply  
in all m aterial respects w ith  the  applicable accounting prin­
ciples in India, th e  applicable accounting standards notified  
under Section 211 (3C) and the  o ther provisions o f th e  Com ­
panies Act 1956 . The Financial Statem ents have been pre­
pared under the  historical cost convention on accrual basis. 
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the  
com pany and except as disclosed, are consistent w ith  those  
used during the  previous year.

All the  assets and liabilities have been classified as current as 
per the  Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria 
set out in Schedule VI to  th e  Companies Act 1956. Based on 
the  nature o f Products and Services and the  tim e betw een  
the  acquisition o f assets for operations and their realization 
in cash and cash equivalent, th e  Com pany has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 m onths.

1.2 Use of estimates:

The preparation o f financial statem ents in conform ity w ith  
generally accepted accounting principles requires esti­
mates and assumptions to  be m ade th a t affect the  reported  
am ounts o f assets and liabilities o f the  financial statements  
and the  reported am ounts o f revenues and expenses during  
the  reporting period. Differences betw een actual results and 
estimates are recognized in the  period in which the results are 
know n /  m aterialized.

For a n d  on  b e h a lf  o f  th e  b o a rd  o f  d ire c to rs

N R Panicker A M ohan Rao
Chairman Director

Philip John STPrabhu
W hole tim e Director Com pany Secretary

1.3 Revenue recognition:

(i) Animation services

In respect o f Anim ation services for th ird parties, incom e is 
recognized based on m ilestone achieved as specified in the  
contracts. In case o f own production o f A nim ated content in­
com e is recognized on sale /  licensing o f such products. Share 
of surplus from  co production ventures is recognized as and 
w hen the  same accrues after recoupm ent o f the  production  
cost in full as per the  term s o fth e  agreem ent.

(ii) Software services

Software services are either provided on a tim e & material ba­
sis or on a fixed price basis. IT Services provided on a tim e & 
material basis are recognized in /  for the  period in which the  
services are perform ed. IT Services provided on a fixed price 
basis are recognized based on the  milestones as specified in 
th e  contracts. Unbilled revenue included under O ther Current 
Assets represents am ount recognized based on services per­
form ed in advance o f billing in accordance w ith  contractual 
terms.

(iii) Rental income

Revenue from  renting out o f m oveable and im m oveable prop­
erties are recognized on accrual basis.

1.4 Fixed assets and depreciation:

Fixed assets

(i) Tangible assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost or at replacem ent cost, in case of 
revaluation, less accum ulated depreciation and im pairm ent, if 
any, in the  value o f the  assets. Cost o f fixed assets includes 
all incidental expenses and interest cost on borrowings where  
applicable, attributable  to  th e  acquisition o f assets, up to the  
date  o f commissioning o fth e  assets.
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(ii) Leased assets

Fixed assets acquired on finance lease have been capitalized  
at lower o f present value o f m in im um  lease payments or fair 
value.These assets have been depreciated over the  useful life 
o fth e  asset as technically ascertained by th e  company.

(iii) Intangible assets

(a) In tangib le assets in the  nature o f software licenses are stated 
at cost and are am ortized over the  estim ated useful life o f 
one to  five years, using straight line m ethod as technically 
assessed.

(b) Goodw ill on m erger included under fixed assets, is am ortized  
over a period o f 5 years.

(c) In tangib le assets in the  nature o f digital assets is capitalized  
as and w hen it is com pleted and ready for com mercialization  
and am ortized over a period o f revenue earning potential as 
estim ated by the  m anagem ent. Cost o f ow n /  co production  
of anim ation products and not ready for com mercialization as 
at the  year end is carried forw ard as capital w ork in progress 
in the  balance sheet as at the  year end, if the  m anagem ent 
is convinced o f th e  com mercial v iability o f the  same. 
D evelopm ent expenses o f an im ation products that are not 
considered to  be com m ercially v iable are expensed.

Gains or losses arising from  derecognition o f an intangible  
asset are m easured as the  difference betw een the  net disposal 
proceeds and the  carrying am ount o f the  asset and are 
recognized in the  statem ent o f profit and loss w hen th e  asset 
is derecognized.

(iv) Depreciation /  amortization

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided for from  the  date  the  
asset is ready to  be put to  use, under straight-line m ethod in 
the  m anner and a t the  rates specified in Schedule XIV to  the  
Com panies Act, 1956, except in case o f com puter software for 
which life is technically ascertained by the  m anagem ent as 
five years and th e  depreciation is charged at the  rate o f 20% . 
The rates o f depreciation and am ortization are as follows:

Asset

Buildings
Plant and equipment 
Office equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Computer hardware 
Computer software 
Vehicles
Intangibles -  Digital 
Assets
Lease hold improve­
ments / Licenses / studio 
materials

Rate of depreciation / amortization (%)

3.34
4.75
4.75
6.33

16.21
20.00
9.50

25.00
Over the lower of estimated useful 
lives of the assets or the primary 
period o fthe  lease.

Fixed assets individually costing Rs 5,000 or less are fully 
depreciated on purchase during th e  relevant year. Assets 
installed in leased premises are am ortized over th e  lease 
period o f the  premises. D igital assets (Intangible) are 
am ortized over th e  estim ated life (revenue earning potential) 
of such assets under w ritten  dow n value m ethod.

1.5 Employee Benefits:

i) Defined contribution plan:

Provident fund /  Employee State Insurance Scheme

Contribution to  Provident fund scheme and Employee State 
Insurance Scheme are charged to  Profit and Loss account 
in th e  year o f contribution. There are no other obligations  
other than such contribution payable to  the  respective fund  
/  scheme.

ii) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

Gratuity has been covered under group gratuity  cum  
assurance scheme o f Life Insurance Corporation o f India. 
Accrued liability for gratu ity as at th e  balance sheet date is 
ascertained on actuarial basis using projected un it credit 
m ethod and balance in excess o f fair value o f the  plan assets 
as at the  yearend is duly provided for.

iii) Compensated absences

Short te rm  com pensated absences are provided for based 
on estimates at gross undiscounted values. Long term  
com pensated absences are provided for based on actuarial 
valuation.

1.6 Provision for taxes:

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current 
income tax is m easured as th e  am ount expected to  be paid 
to  th e  tax authorities in accordance w ith  the  Incom e-tax Act, 
1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the  respective 
tax jurisdictions w here th e  com pany operates. The tax rates 
and tax laws used to  com pute th e  am ount are those that  
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the  reporting date. 
Current taxes and liabilities are offset w here there  is a legally  
enforceable right to  set o ff the  recognized am ounts and there  
is a in tention to  settle th e  asset and the  liability on a net basis..

Deferred tax is recognized on tim ing differences between  
th e  accounting incom e and the  taxable incom e for the  
year, and quantified using th e  tax rates and laws enacted  
or substantively enacted as on the  Balance Sheet date. In 
respect o f undertakings the  incom e o f which is exem pt under 
section 10B o f th e  Incom e Tax Act, 1961, deferred tax liability 
on account o f tim ing  differences arising but getting  reversed 
during the  tax holiday period has not been recognized.

Deferred tax  assets are recognized and carried forward to  
th e  extent tha t there is a virtual certainty as the  case may be 
th a t sufficient fu tu re  taxable incom e will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying am ount o f deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date. The com pany writes-dow n the  carrying 
am ount o f deferred tax asset to  the  extent th a t it is no longer 
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the  case may be, 
that sufficient fu ture taxable incom e will be available against 
which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such w rite-dow n  
is reversed to  the  extent th a t it becomes reasonably certain 
or virtually certain, as the  case m ay be, th a t sufficient future  
taxable income will be available

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when  
there is , if a legally enforceable right exists to  set-off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and w here deferred tax  
assets and deferred taxes liabilities relate to  taxes on income  
levied by the  same governing laws and same taxable entity.

1.7 Accounting for provisions, contingent liabilities and con­
tingent assets:

A provision is recognized w hen the  com pany has a present 
obligation as a result o f past event, it is probable that an 
outflow  o f resources em bodying econom ic benefits will be  
required to  settle th e  obligation and a reliable estim ate can 
be m ade o f the  am ount o f the  obligation. Provisions are 
not discounted to  the ir present value and are determ ined  
based on th e  m anagem ent estim ate required to  settle the  
obligation at th e  reporting date.These estimates are reviewed  
at each reporting date  and adjusted to  reflect the  current 
m anagem ent estimates.

C ontingent liabilities are disclosed by w ay o f notes to  the  
Balance Sheet. Provision is m ade in th e  accounts in respect 
o f those liabilities which are likely to  m aterialize after the  
yearend, till the  finalization o f accounts and have material 
effect on the  position stated in th e  Balance sheet.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the  financial 
statem ents as a m atter o f prudence.
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1.8 Segment reporting:

Segment accounting policies

Segm ent accounting policies are in line w ith  the  accounting  
policies o f the  com pany. However, the  follow ing specific 
accounting policies have been follow ed for segm ent 
reporting:

i. Segm ent revenue includes sales, service and other income  
directly identifiable w ith  /  allocable to the  segm ent including  
inter-segm ent revenue.

ii. Expenses that are directly identifiable w ith /  allocable to  
segments are considered for determ in ing the  segm ent result. 
The expenses, which relate to  the  com pany as a w hole and not 
allocable to  segments, are included under "other unallocable  
expenditure"

iii. Income, which relates to  the  company, as a w hole and not 
allocable to  segments is included in "unallocable corporate  
income"

iv. Segm ent result includes margins on in ter-segm ent capital 
jobs, which are reduced in arriving at the  profit before tax o f 
the  company.

v. Segm ent assets and liabilities include those directly  
identifiable w ith  the  respective segments. Unallocable  
corporate assets and liabilities represent the  assets and 
liabilities that relate to the  com pany as a w hole and not 
allocable to  any segm ent. Unallocable assets m ainly comprise  
of investments in subsidiaries and others. Unallocable  
liabilities include provisions for em ployee retirem ent benefits  
& Taxation.

vi Segm ent Revenue resulting from  transactions w ith  other
business segments is accounted on the  basis o f transfer 
price agreed betw een the  segments. Such transfer prices are 
either determ ined to  yield a desired m argin or agreed on a 
negotiated basis.

1.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs th a t are attributable  to  the acquisition 
or construction or production o f qualifying assets that 
necessarily takes a substantial period o f tim e to get ready for 
its in tended use or sale are capitalized as part o f th e  cost of 
such assets. All o ther borrow ing costs are charged to  revenue, 
during the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing 
cost includes interest, am ortization o f ancillary costs 
incurred in connection w ith  the  arrangem ent o f borrowings  
and exchange differences arising from  foreign currency  
borrowings to  the  extent they  are regarded as an adjustm ent 
to  the  interest cost.

1.10 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The com pany assesses at each reporting date  w hether there is 
an indication th a t an asset m ay be im paired. If any indication  
exists, or w hen annual im pairm ent testing for an asset is 
required, the  com pany estimates the  asset's recoverable 
am ount. W here the  carrying am ount o f an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable am ount, the  asset is considered 
im paired and is w ritten  dow n to  its recoverable am ount. In 
assessing value in use, the  estim ated future cash flows are 
discounted to the ir present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate th a t reflects current m arket assessments o fth e  tim e value  
of m oney and the  risks specific to  th e  asset. In determ in ing  
net selling price, recent m arket transactions are taken into  
account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation m odel is used.

The com pany bases its im pairm ent calculation on detailed  
budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared  
separately for each o f th e  company's cash-generating units to  
which the  individual assets are allocated.These budgets and 
forecast calculations are generally covering a period o f seven 
years.

Im pairm ent losses o f continuing operations, including 
im pairm ent on inventories, are recognized in the  statem ent 
of profit and loss, except for previously revalued tangible  
fixed assets, where the  revaluation was taken to revaluation  
reserve. In this case, the  im pairm ent is also recognized in 
the  revaluation reserve up to the  am ount o f any previous 
revaluation.

After im pairm ent, depreciation is provided on the  revised 
carrying am ount o fth e  asset over its rem aining useful life.

An assessment is m ade at each reporting date  as to  w hether  
there  is any indication th a t previously recognized im pairm ent 
losses may no longer exist or m ay have decreased. If such 
indication exists, th e  com pany estimates the  asset's or 
cash-generating unit's recoverable am ount. A previously 
recognized im pairm ent loss is reversed only if there has 
been a change in the  assumptions used to  determ ine the  
asset's recoverable am ount since th e  last im pairm ent loss 
was recognized. The reversal is lim ited so th a t the  carrying 
am ount o fth e  asset does not exceed its recoverable am ount, 
nor exceed the  carrying am ount that would have been  
determ ined, net o f depreciation, had no im pairm ent loss 
been recognized for the  asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognized in the  statem ent o f profit and loss unless the  asset 
is carried at a revalued am ount, in which case the  reversal is 
treated as a revaluation increase

1.11 Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to  be 
held for not m ore than a year, if any are classified as current 
investments. All o ther investments are classified as long term  
investments. Current investments are carried at lower o f cost 
and fair value determ ined on an individual investm ent basis. 
Long term  investments are carried at cost. Provision is m ade  
where there is a fall in value o f such long-term  investments, 
which are other than tem porary  in nature. Investments outside  
India in subsidiary com panies are carried in the  Balance Sheet 
at historical cost.

1.12 Cash Flow st ment

Cash flows from  operating activities are reported using the  
indirect m ethod, w hereby net profit before tax is adjusted 
for the  effects o f transactions o f a non-cash nature and 
any deferrals or accruals o f past or fu ture cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from  regular revenue generating, 
investing and financing activities o f the  com pany are 
segregated.

1.13 Inventories

a) Cost o f production representing overheads incurred for 
Anim ation contract services is carried over as w ork in progress 
in th e  Balance Sheet as at th e  year end.

1.14 Foreign currency transactions

i. Initial recognition -  foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the  reporting currency, by applying to  the  foreign currency 
am ount the  exchange rate betw een th e  reporting currency 
and the  foreign currency approxim ately at the  date o f the  
transaction.

ii. Conversion -  Foreign currency m onetary items are reported
using the  closing rate at the  yearend. Non m onetary items, 
which are carried in term s o f historical cost denom inated in a 
foreign currency, are reported using the  exchange rate at the  
date o fth e  transaction.

iii. Exchange differences -  exchange differences arising on the  
settlem ent or conversion o f m onetary items are recognized as 
incom e or as expenses in the  period in which they arise.

1.15 Earnings Per Share

The num ber o f shares used in com puting basic earnings per 
share is the  w eighted average num ber o f shares outstanding 
during the  year. The num ber o f shares used in com puting  
diluted earnings per share comprises the  w eighted average 
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
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also the  w eighted average num ber o f shares, if any, which 
w ould have been issued on the  conversion o f all dilutive  
potentia l equity  shares.

2.0 Notes to accounts

2.1 Measurement of EBITDA

As perm itted  by th e  Guidance Note on the  Revised Schedule 
VI to  th e  Com panies Act, 1956, th e  com pany has elected  
to  present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
am ortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item  on the  face o fth e  
statem ent o f profit and loss. The com pany measures EBITDA 
on the  basis o f pro fit/ (loss) from  continuing operations. In its 
m easurem ent, th e  com pany does not include depreciation  
and am ortization expense,finance costs and tax expense.

Note: 03 Share Capital

2.2 Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

During the  year ended 31 M arch 2012, the  revised Schedule 
VI notified under the Companies Act 1956, has becom e  
applicable to  the  company, for preparation and presentation  
of its financial statements. The adoption o f revised Schedule 
VI does not im pact recognition and m easurem ent principles 
followed for preparation o f financial statements. However, it 
has significant im pact on presentation and disclosures made  
in the  financial statem ents.The com pany has also reclassified 
the previous year figures in accordance w ith  the requirem ents  
applicable in the  current year.

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Authorized Share Capital

19,750,000 (19,750,000)Equity Share o f Rs. 10 each 197,500,000 197,500,000

250,000 ( 250,000 ) 12% cum ulative redeem able preference shares o f Rs. 10/- 
each

2,500,000 2,500,000

200,000,000 200,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

(11,037,401 ) Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each Fully Paid up 110,374,010 110,374,010

110,374,010 110,374,010

3.1 Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at beginning and end of the period

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Equity Shares Number Rs Number Rs

At the  beginning o fth e  year 11037401 110,374,010 11037401 110,374,010

Issued During the  year Nil Nil

Outstanding at the  end o f the  year 11037401 110,374,010 11037401 110,374,010

3.2 Shares held by holding company Rs

31/03/2012

Rs

31/03/2011

Accel L im ited- the  ho lding com pany

56,30,000 equity  shares o f Rs. 10 /- each fully paid up 56,300,000 56,300,000

3.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares 
in the company

Numbers Percentage Numbers Percentage

Accel L im ited -th e  holding com pany 5,630,000 51.01 5,630,000 51.01

Equity Share o f Rs. 10 each each fully paid

3.4 M oney received against Share Warrants (See Note -3 .5 ) 4 ,166,250 4,166,250

3.5 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

Equity shares

The com pany has one class o f equity shares having a par 
value o f Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is e lig ible for one  
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the  Board of 
Directors is subject to  the  approval o fth e  shareholders in the  
ensuing Annual General M eeting, except in case o f an interim  
dividend. In the  event o f liquidation, the  equity shareholders 
are elig ible to  receive th e  rem aining assets o f the  com pany  
after distribution o f all preferential am ounts in proportion to 
the ir shareholding.

Preferential warrants

The com pany had issued 5,50,000 convertible warrants to  a 
subscriber ( non p ro m o te r) for a face value o f Rs. 10/- each at a 
price o f Rs 30.30 aggregating to  Rs.16 ,665,000 /- on Decem ber 
31, 2010. The subscriber has rem itted  Rs. 41,66,250 being 
25%  o f the  issue consideration. The Issue was approved by 
the  share holders in the  EGM held on Decem ber 17 ,2010 . As 
per the  term s o f the  issue, each o f these warrants are to  be 
converted into one Equity share o f Rs. 10 /- each at a price of 
Rs.30.30 each w ithin a period o f 18 m onths from  the  date o f  
issue o f warrants at the  option o f the  subscriber. In case the  
subscriber does not exercise the  option for such conversion 
within the  prescribed period, the  am ount paid for, will be  
forfeited.The option has to be exercised on or before June 30, 
2012.
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Note: 04 Reserves & Surplus
As at As at

ACCEL TRANSMATIC LIMITED
Annual Report 2011-12

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

Capital reserve 10,197,500 10,197,500

Capital redem ption reserve 2,100,000 2,100,000

Revaluation reserve - opening balance 12,222,112 12,280,567

Less: Additional depreciation on revaluation (58,466) (58,466)

Revaluation reserve - closing balance 12,163,646 12,222,112

24,461,146 24,519,612

Surplus /  (deficit) in Profit and Loss statem ent

Balance as per the  last financial statements (91,014,951) (54,499,424)

Add: profit /  (loss) for the  year 2,889,203 (36,515,527)

Sub total - closing balance (88,125,748) (91,014,951)

Total (63,664,602) (66,495,339)

4.1 Going concern

The com pany has suffered cash losses from  its operations during the  year, w ithou t considering the  profit on transfer o f its technologies 
division. The accum ulated losses as on the  date o f th e  balance sheet is m ore than 50%  o f its net w orth . However, considering the  
expected future cash flows from  the  business and the  intellectual property tha t the  com pany is currently exploiting through global 
sales , the  m anagem ent is o f the  opinion that the  com pany w ould be in a position to continue as a going concern and hence the  
accounts have been drawn up on such basis.

Note OS: Long term borrowings

Non - Current portion Current Maturities

31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Rs Rs Rs Rs

Term loans from  banks ( in INR)

Secured (See N ote" 5 .1" below) 15,353,157 58,106,605 28,800,000 29,400,000

Hire purchase loans - 144,585 75,518 542,292

O ther loans and advances :

From related parties 72,598,755 97,111,076 6,600,000 3,600,000

Deposits from  public 9,000,000 5,050,000 1,000,000 5,700,000

96,951,912 160,412,266 36,475,518 39,242,292

Maximum amounts due on the loans taken from related parties at any time during the year

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Accel Limited 55,630,653 49,869,418

Accel Frontline Services Limited 73,613,680 60,349,608

Accel M edia Ventures Limited - 674,194

5.1. Details of Security: The term  loan from  bank is secured by hypothecation o f assets acquired out o f th a t loan. The limits are further 
secured by assignm ent of lease deposit in respect of leased property at Trivandrum  in favour o fth e  bank.The loans are also secured 
by a corporate guarantee o f Accel Limited and pledge o f 7,50,000 equity  shares o f Accel Transmatic Limited held by Accel Limited, the  
holding company.

5.2 Terms of repayment: loans from  related party carry an interest o f 13.75%  p.a. and are repayable in m onth ly installments o f Rs.
5 0 0 ,0 0 0 , beginning O ctober 2012 .Term  loan from  bank carries interest @ 17.50%  p.a and the  am ount outstanding as on the date 
of balance sheet is repayable in quarterly installment o f Rs 72,00,000 lakhs . Hire purchase loans carry an interest o f 9%  p.a and the  
a m o unt outstand ing as on the date o f balance sheet is repayable in 4  m onthly installments o f Rs. 21,991 each. Public deposit carries 
interest @ 11% pa (P.Y 10% ),and are repayable after 3 years from  the  respective dates o f acceptance o f deposits.

O  “7  
/

5.3. During the  year the  com pany has sold its technology division to  Accel Frontline Limited (AFL) w ith  effect from  15/08/2011 .As per the  
term s o f th e  agreem ent th e  net assets o f th e  division has been transferred to  AFL including th e  Term  Loan & Cash Credit accounts 
w ith  State Bank o f India pertaining to  the  division. However the  confirm ation received from  the  bank includes the  loans pertaining  
to  the  transferred division am ounting to  Rs. 2 ,12 ,59,363/- pending transfer o f the  loan & Cash credit lim it allocated to  the  technology  
division o f AFL by th e  bank.The com pany is pursuing w ith  the  bank for the  transfer.

4
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Note 06 ( a ) : Long term Provisions

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

953,040 7,870,937

496 ,430  5,762,851

1,449,470 13,633,788

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

Note 06 ( b): Short term Provisions 

As at

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

580,433

40,252 303,312

620 ,685 303,312

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity -  Funded Obligation

a) Disclosure required under AS15 -"E m ployee Benefits"(Revised 
2005)

1. Defined Contribution Plan
During the  year, the  com pany has recognized in the  Profit and 
Loss Account, an am ount o f Rs. 17,79,131 lacs (Previous Year 
Rs.32,60,373) on account o f defined contribution towards  
Provident Fund and Rs. 4 ,56,035 lacs (Previous Year 6,49,235) 
towards Employees State Insurance Scheme.

1 Actuarial Assumption 31.03.12 31.03.11

Discount Rate (per annum ) 8% 8%

Salary escalation rate * 5% 10%

Expected average  
rem aining lives o f working  
em ployees (year)

25.65 25.65

The assumption o f fu tu re  salary increases takes into account o f inflation, seniority, prom otions and other relevant factors such as supply 
and dem and in the  em p loym ent m arket. II

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

II Reconciliation of present value of obligations Rs. Rs.

Present value o f obligation at beginning o fth e  year 9,077,514 4,265,296

Current services cost 316,454 2,151,364

Interest cost 738,859 427,278

Actuarial (gain)/loss (7,342,286) 2,806,624

Benefits paid (979,315) (573,048)

Present value o f obligation at th e  end o f the  year 1,811,226 9,077,514

III Net (Asset) / Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet as at year end Rs. Rs.

Present value o f obligations at the  end o f the year 1,811,226 9,077,514

Net Present value o f unfunded obligation recognized as (asset) /  liability in the  Balance 
Sheet

1,533,473 7,870,937

IV Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account Rs. Rs.

Current service cost 316,454 2,151,364

Interest cost 738,859 427,278

Actuarial (gain) /  loss recognized in the  period (7,392,777) 2,680,513

Settlem ent cost /  (credit) 2,708,561

Past service cost -

Total expenses recognized in the  Profit and Loss Account for the  year (3,628,903) 5,259,155

N ote:The above disclosures and the  break up o f liability into long term  and short term  are based on valuation report o f an independent 
actuary and relied upon by th e  auditors

3. Long term  em ployee benefits
Com pensated absences (Leave encashment) -  U nfunded Obligation

1 Actuarial Assumption 31.03.12 31.03.11

Discount Rate (per annum) 8% 8%

Salary escalation rate * 6% 10%

Expected average rem aining lives o f working employees (year) 23 23

The assumption o f fu tu re  salary increases takes into account o f inflation, seniority, prom otions and o ther relevant factors such as supply 
and dem and in the  em p loym ent market.
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Reconciliation of present value of obligations

Present value o f obligation at beginning o fth e  vear

Current services cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Present value o f obligation at the  end of the  year

Net (Asset) /  Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet as at year end

Present value of obligations at th e  end o f th e  year

Iii

Iv

Net Present value o f unfunded obligation recognized as (asset) /  liability in the  Balance 
Sheet

Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account

Current service cost 

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) /  loss recognized in th e  period  

Settlem ent cost /  (credit)

Past service cost

Total expenses recognized in the  Profit and Loss Account for the  year

31.03.2012

Rs.

6,066,163

422.862

502.208

(6.454.551)

536,682

Rs.

536682

536682

Rs.

422.862

502.208

(6.454.551) 

4,237,126

(1,292,355)

31.03.2011

Rs.

2,804,426

4.135.444

389.772

(1.263.479)

6.066.163  

Rs.

6.066.163

6.066.163

Rs.

4.135.444

389.772

(1.263.479)

3,261,737

N ote:The above disclosures and the  break up o f liability into long term  and short term  are based on valuation report o f an independent 
actuary and relied upon by th e  auditors.

Note 07: Short term borrowings ( secured)

As at

a. Cash Credit from  The State 
Bank O f India

b. Pre Shipm ent Finance From  
State Bank O f India

31.03.2012

10,136,048

14,890,811

As at

31.03.2011

10,064,669

37,220,924

25,026,859 47,285,593

The Cash Credit limits, Term Loan Limits and Non Funded Limits (The 
Limits) are secured by hypothecation of Intellectual property rights 
and receivables and hypothecation of assets created out of bank 
finance and carries interest @ 17.50% p.a and are repayable on demand.

The Limits are also secured by equitable mortgage of company's 
immovable properties at Trivandrum & Chennai

The limits are further secured by assignment of lease deposit in favour 
o fth e  bank in respect of leased property at Trivandrum. The loans are 
also secured by a corporate guarantee of Accel Limited and pledge 
of 7,50,000 equity shares o f Accel Transmatic Limited held by Accel 
Limited, the holding company. Also refer note 5.3.

8.1 Dues to Micro, Small Enterprises

The company has initiated the process of identifying the suppliers who 
qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006. 
Since no intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding 
their status under the said Act as at 31 st March 2012, disclosures relating 
to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In 
the opinion of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may 
be payable in accordance with the provisions o fth e  Act is not expected 
to  be material.

Note 9: Other Current Liabilities

Note 08: Trade Payables

Dues to  m ic ro , small enterprises  
(See note  8.1)

Others

Expenses payable

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

As at As at

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

a. O ther Payables

(i) Statutory remittances 8,831,052 11,335,780

(ii) unclaim ed dividend  
(see note 9.2 below)

170,907 170,979

iii) Advances received 
(see note 9.1 below)

25,736,625 6,084,785

(iii) Dues towards fixed 
purchases

asset 4,762,737 7,267,252

(iv) Current m aturity in Long 
Term Borrowings (See Note No.5)

36,475,518 39,242,292

75,976,839 84,101,088

1,355,915

12,230,347

7,351,390

33,206,538

13,586,262 40,557,928

9.1 Advances received includes Security deposit including interest 
accrued received from an associate company for providing a corporate 
guarantee to a bank amounting to Rs. 25,268,776 (P.Y Rs. 22,936,562).

9.2 Unclaimed dividend will be transferred to the Investor Protection 
and Education Fund if remains unclaimed, in the year 2012-13 & 2013- 
14 respectively.
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Summary of significant accounting policies & practices, forming 
part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2012
(All am ounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherw ise stated)

10.3 Capital Work In Progress

Amount in Rs.

Particulars as at as at
31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Balance as at the beg inn ing o fth e  
period 85,316,149 23,506,629

Add itions during the period 44,311,775 61,809,520

Transferred to  fixed assets 106,343,542 -

Transferred on sale o f undertaking 10,456,741 -

Transferred to  revenue expenditure 12,827,641 -

Balance as at the end o f the period - 85,316,149

10.4 Revaluation

The com pany has revalued its land and buildings at Trivandrum  
during the  year ended 31.03.2004, a t the  fair values determ ined  
by an independent external valuer.The valuer determ ined th e  fair 
value by reference to  m arket-based evidence.

The revaluation resulted in an increase in the  value o f freehold  
land and build ing by Rs. 1,09,39,354 and Rs.17,50,486, respectively. 
The revaluation o f th e  build ing results an additional depreciation  

charge o f Rs.58,466 every year. In accordance w ith  the  option  
given in the  Guidance Note on Accounting for Depreciation in 
C om panies,the com pany recoups such additional depreciation out 
of revaluation reserve.

10.5 Lease Hold Land

Land under Fixed Assets includes Rs.67.60 lacs being the  value 
o f land a llo tted and possession handed over by KINFRA Film & 
Video Park (KINFRA), a Governm ent o f Kerala U ndertaking to the  
Com pany for construction o f build ing to  house its operations for 
which th e  registration form alities are yet to  be com pleted. As per 
the  agreem ent w ith "  the  pa rty" ,th e  said land is on a 90 year lease 
and has to  be developed w ith in  a period o f 3 years from  the  date of 
allo tm ent i.e. on or before 05.04.2010,. The said land could not be 
developed w ith in  the  tim e  fram e agreed on account o fth e  difficult 
scenario being faced by the Anim ation Industry in general and the  
com pany in particular. K INFRA, in the  m eantim e has changed the  
status o f th e  SEZ from  Anim ation to  include IT/ITES also., This has 
been approved by the  Ministry o f Industries & Com merce vide its 
letter dated 7th February 2012 .T h e  com pany has subm itted its 
proposal to  KINFRA to  change our status to  a co developer.

10.6 Fixed assets, capital work in progress & Inventory of 
intangible assets

The anim ation division o f the  com pany is engaged in the  
developm ent o f Anim ation contents, which can be under a service 
/  co production contract or for creating its ow n IPR. The cum ulative  
expenses incurred under co production and IPR creation activities 

are carried forward under capital work-in-progress, till the assets 
are ready for com mercial exp loitation. The expenses incurred 
under service contracts are carried forward as w ork in progress 
inventories till th e  m ilestone billing are achieved. The follow ing  
am ounts are carried forward in the  Accounts as at the  year end.:- 
1 .U nder Fixed Assets & Capital w ork in progress (net of am ortization) 
Rs.130,414,971 ( Previous year Rs.13,160,051 )

10.7 Impairment of Assets

In the  opinion o fth e  m anagem ent there is no im pairm ent as on the  
date  o f the  balance sheet in the  value o f the  carrying cost o f fixed 
assets o fth e  com pany w ith in  the  m eaning o f Accounting Standard 
- 2 8  on Im pairm ent o f Assets issued under Companies (Accounting  
Standards) Rules 2006. Considering the  revenue earning potential 
o f the  com pany and based on estimates, o f the  cash generation  
unit of the  company.

Note 11: Investments 

Unquoted (Trade) at cost 

In Subsidiaries

Accel North America, California Inc

[ Nil (155000) Shares o f USD 1 Each ]

In Others Quoted [Non-Trade] at cost 

Rajashree Sugars and Chemicals Ltd

[65 (65) Equity shares o f Rs.10/- each fully paid up]

State Bank of India

[60 (6 0 ) Equity shares o f Rs.10 /-  each fully paid up ]

ICICI Bank Limited

[125 (125) Equity Shares o f Rs.10 /-  each fully paid up ] 

Pittsburgh Iron and Steels Ltd ( Formerly S & Y Mills Limited)

[500 (500) Equity Shares o f Rs.10 /-  each fully paid up]

As at 

31.03.2012

1,575

20,900

25,756

2,165

As at 

31.03.2011

6,416,147

1,575

20,900

25,756

2,165

50,396 6,466,543

Quoted

Unquoted

Book Value as at 

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-ll

50,396 50,396

6,416,147

Market Value as at 

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-ll

244,511 313,934
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Note 12: Inventories

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

W ork in Progress (refer note 10.6) - 4,442,705

- 4,442,705

Note 13:Trade Receivables

Non - Current portion Current Maturities

As at As at As at As at

31/03/2012 31/03/2011 31/03/2012 31/03/2011

(Unsecured Considered G o o d )

O utstanding for m ore than 6 months 13,648,695 17,493,490

Less: Provision - - (8,593,630) (2,100,000)

- - 5,055,065 15,393,490

Outstan 23,674,553 - 50,968,843

23,674,553 - - 50,968,843

23,674,553 - 5,055,065 66,362,333

The C om pany has sought for confirm ation o f balances from  concerned parties in respect o f m ajor accounts o f sundry debtors, other 
receivables, loans and advances and sundry creditors outstanding as at the  year-end, which, however is received in some o f the cases.

This also includes the  revenue en titlem ent on the  international 
recoupm ent on one o f its co production w ork com pleted.
Note 14: Cash and Bank balances

Note 15 (b): Short term loans and advances

As at

Cash & Cash Equivalents

a. Cash on hand

b. Balances w ith banks 

In current accounts

As at 

31.03.2012

17,477

2,463,893

As at 

31.03.2011

78,574

244,959

2,481,370 323,533

O ther Bank Balances

(i) In unpaid D ividend account 170,907 170,979

(ii) M argin M oney (Liquid Deposit 
towards Public Deposit)

1,885,864 2,477,723

2,056,771 2,648,702

4,538,141 2,972,235

Note 15 (a): Long term loans and advances

As at As at

31/03/2012 31/03/2011

(Unsecured considered good)

(a) Security deposits 4,850,225 17,165,559

4,850,225 17,165,559

(Unsecured considered good)

(a) Loans and advances to  
employees

(b) Prepaid expenses

(c) Balances w ith  governm ent 
authorities

(d) O ther advances

(e) Advance to  suppliers

Note 15 (c): Other current assets

(a) Unbilled revenue

31/03/2012

203,016

128,285

6,289,901

14,305,284

As at 

31/03/2011

625,895

954,349

5,408,200

3,636,543

20,926,486 10,624,987

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

790,302 30,931,518

790,302 30,931,518

1) In the  opinion o f the  Directors, the  current assets, loans and 
advances have the  value in which they  are stated in the  balance  
sheet, if realized in the  ordinary course o f business.

2) Unbilled revenue represents am ount recognized based on 
services perform ed in advance o f billing in accordance with  
contractual terms.
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(All am ounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherw ise stated)

Note 16: Revenue from operations

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Services -  exports 80,673,892 71,634,224 9,039,668 184,643,973

Services -  domestic 5,121,580 - 5,121,580 7,086,160

Product sales 3,950 - 3,950 121,250

85,799,422 71,634,224 14,165,198 191,851,383

O ther operating income

Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) 3,159,099 1,319,717 1,839,382 302,855

Provision no longer required 4,921,258 4,921,258 -

8,080,357 1,319,717 6,760,640 302,855

93,879,779 72,953,941 20,925,838 192,154,238

Note 17: Other income

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Interest income 203,681 13,494 190,187 459,115

Dividend income 3,550 - 3,550 3,195

O ther non operating Income 2,778,170 - 2,778,170 4,068,528

2,985,401 13,494 2,971,907 4,530,838

Note 18: Cost of services

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Subcontracting and Outsourcing cost 12,789,494 - 12,789,494 3,762,269

12,789,494 - 12,789,494 3,762,269

Note 19: Changes in inventory

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Closing stock o f  WIP and finished goods - 4,442,705

Less : O pening stock o f WIP and finished goods 4,442,705 4,047,005

4,442,705 - - (395,700)

Note 20: Employee benefit expenses

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Salaries and allowances 51,892,665 32,026,980 19,865,685 81,229,419

C ontribution to  Provident and other w elfare funds 3,828,069 1,694,942 2,133,127 11,472,768

Staff w elfare expenses 2,979,600 1,806,514 1,173,086 5,026,979

58,700,334 35,528,436 23,171,898 97,729,166
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Note 21: Other expenses

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Rent 10,089,440 1,753,243 8,336,197 12,155,912

Power and fuel 4,642,666 503,916 4,138,750 4,605,414

Insurance 800,259 573,234 227,025 1,865,858

Rates & taxes 825,433 - 825,433 1,050,065

Repair and m aintenance

Repair to  building 541,168 541,168 - 993,235

Repair to  m achinery 1,070,405 745,137 325,268 1,702,872

Others 1,183,364 311,763 871,601 1,030,684

Traveling & conveyance 11,583,401 10,586,734 996,667 30,076,853

Printing and stationery 639,962 54,446 585,516 589,303

Postage, telegram  & telephone 1,989,006 1,014,075 974,931 3,693,440

Legal and professional 2,465,605 922,453 1,543,152 5,166,169

Business prom otion .advertisem ent and publicity 2,972,013 - 2,972,013 -

Payment to  auditors

as Statutory Audit fees 337,080 - 337,080 330,900

as reim bursem ent o f expenses 5,536 - 5,536 17,835

Loss on sale o f fixed assets 6,366,029 - 6,366,029 13,236

Miscellaneous expenses 726,829 273,531 453,298 1,551,166

Packing and forwarding 394,258 38,098 356,160 191,096

Irrecoverable /  doubtful debts and advances 27,419,881 - 27,419,881 2,646,026

M arketing & distribution expenses 1,668,451 1,038,634 629,817 3,063,929

75,720,786 18,356,432 57,364,354 70,743,993

Miscellaneous expenses include, directors sitting fees Rs. 1,20,000 (PY 1,10,000)

Note 22: Finance cost

For the Year ended 31.03.2012 Year Ended

Total Discontinued
Operations

Continuing
Operations

31.03.2011

Interest Expenses

On w orking capital 4,955,700 764,263 4,191,437 5,759,051

On term  loans 12,871,760 204,196 12,667,564 15,181,234

On o ther loans 12,905,098 15,604 12,889,494 827,078

Bank charges and commission 173,825 74,231 99,594 535,452

30,906,383 1,058,294 29,848,089 22,302,815
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Obligation on Long Term non-cancelable finance lease

The obligation on account o f long-term  finance leases entered into  
for com puters is as follows:
Obligation on leases

Particulars 2011-12 2010-11

M in im um  Lease Payment

N ot Later than 1 Year

Later Than one year bu t not later than  

five years

Later than five years

Present Value o f M in im um  Lease 
Payments

N ot Later than 1 Year

Later Than one year but not later than  
five years

Later than  five years

Finance Charges Recognized in the  
P & L A / c

Note 23: Exceptional items

The C om pany sold its Technology division ('transferred division') 
along w ith  its subsidiary in U nited States o f America to  Accel 
Frontline Limited, pursuant to  a Business transfer agreem ent w.e.f. 
August 15th, 2011 on a slum p sale basis for a cash consideration 
o f Rs.19.97 crores. The transaction was approved by the  Board o f 
Directors on its m eeting held on August 2nd, 2011. As per the  terms 
o f the  above said BTA, the  com pany is e lig ible for an additional 
am ount upto  Rs. 2 Crores as incentive if the  said division achieves 
an EBITDA o f Rs. 5 crores for the  tw elve m onths period ended  
31st M arch 2012 as finalized by the  audited accounts o f the  said 
division. Since the  audit o f th e  accounts and approval /adoption  
o f the  sam e by the  Board o f Directors o f Accel Frontline Limited  
has not been com pleted as on date o f finalization o f this company's 
accounts, the  com pany has not recognized any am ounts towards  
the  incentive for th e  year ended 31st M arch 2 0 1 2 .

D uring th e  previous year , th e  com pany divested 100000 equity  
shares o f Rs. 10 each representing 10% o f Share Capital o f Accel 
IT Resources Limited (Formerly Accel Academ y Limited) for a 
consideration o f Rs. 120 Lakhs.The profit on sale o f investments o f 
Rs.60 Lacs was credited to  Profit $nd Loss account as exceptional 
item.
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23.1 Disclosure of discontinued operations(as per AS-24)

The details o fth e  Assets & Liabilities o fth e  transferred division as at 
the  close o f 14.08.2011 is given below

P a r t i c u l a r s Am ount

Fixed assets net, Including Capital work in progress. 30,258,451

Investments in Accel North America Inc. 6,416,147

Current assets loans & advances

Sundry Debtors 56,860,525

Cash and bank balances 247,692

Other Current Assets 11,147,497

Loans and Advances 12,986,146

81,241,860

Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions

Liabilities 24,569,622

Provisions 7,691,384

32,261,006

Net Current Assets 48,980,854

Total for Current assets, Fixed assets & investments 85,655,452

Less: bank liability relating to the discontinued 
operations -  See Note: 5.3

26,510,226

Net Business Value as on 14.08.2011 59,145,224

The difference betw een the  consideration and the  net business 
value is disclosed as profit on sale o f business under exceptional 
items

24.2 The profit & loss statement of the discontinued business 
considered in the financial statements for the period is as 
follows

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Note

1 Revenue from  operations 16 72,953,941

2 O ther Income 17 13,494

3 Total Revenue (1) 72,967,435

4  Expenses

a. Employee Benefit Expenses 20 35,528,436

g. O ther Expenses 21 18,356,432

e. Finance Cost 22 10,58,294

f. Depreciation 10 1,436,159

5. Total Expenses 56,379,321

6 Profit/! Loss) before Tax (3-5) 16,588,114

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil 5,19,713
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Capitalization of expenditure

During th eyear.th ecom pany has capitalized thefo llow ing  expenses 
to  the  cost o f fixed asset classified under in tangib le assets/ capital 
work-in-progress (CWIP) being the  expenses relatable to  such 
assets. Consequently, expenses disclosed under th e  respective 
notes are net o f am ounts capitalized by th e  company.

Particulars 31 M arch 2012

In Rupees. 

31 M arch 2011

Salaries, wages and bonus  

O perating expenses 

Finance costs

9,881,352

6,973,658

3,150,076

20,133,073

10,145,531

11,146,230

20,005,086 41,424,834

Earnings per share (Basic and diluted):

SI.No Particulars 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

01 Profit /  (Loss) after taxation 
Profit available to Equity 
Shareholders

28,89,203 (3,65,15,524)

02 Less: Exceptional Item 140,554,776 60,00,000

03 Profit W ithout Extra Ordinary 
Item

(137,665,577) (4,25,15,524)

04 Weighted average number of 
equity shares

11,174,901 1,10,71,682

05 Basic earnings per share with 
Exceptional Item

0.26 (3.30)

06 Basic earnings per Share 
without Exceptional Item

(12.02) (3.84)

07 Diluted earnings per share 
with Extraordinary Item

0.25 (3.31)

08 Diluted earnings per Share 
without Extraordinary Item

(12.02) (3.85)

09 Total Nominal Value of 
Shares

11,03,74,010 11,03,74,010

Taxation:

Provision for current tax is m ade on the  basis o f the assessable 
Incom e and /o r  M at Provisions, at the  tax rate applicable to  the  
relevant assessment year. No tax provision is m ade under normal 
as well under MAT for the  incom e arising out o f the  discontinued  
business considering the  brought forward losses o f the  com pany  
as a w hole. The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is 
calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been  
enacted or substantively enacted by the  Balance Sheet date The  
net Deferred Tax Asset a t the  yearend am ounts to  Rs 84,54,064/- 
(Previous Year Asset Rs.1, 14,83,124) and is not recognized as a 
m atter o f prudence.

Related Party Disclosures 
Controlling Company -  Accel Limited

Subsidiaries & Associates under com m on c o n tro l:
Accel Frontline Limited
Accel Frontline Services Limited
Accel IT Resources Limited
Accel M edia Ventures Limited
Accel North America Inc - Subsidiary U pto 15.08.2011
Accel Systems Group Inc.

Key Management Personnel:

N R Panicker 
Philip John

Non Executive Chairman  
W hole tim e  Director

Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

Particulars

Liability

Difference betw een book  
and tax depreciation

Others

Total

Assets

Carried forward Depreciation  
/  business Loss

Others

Total

Net deferred Tax Asset / 
(Liability)

Deferred Deferred
tax Asset /  tax Asset /  

(Liability) as (Liability) as 
on 31.03.2012 on 31.03.2011

1,11,98,542

1,89,48,960

1,79,50,802

1,11,98,542 1,79,50,802

2,52,54,923

7,03,646 41,79,003

1,96,52,606 2,94,33,926

84,54,064 1,14,83,124



Summary of significant accounting policies & practices, forming 
part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2012
(All am ounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherw ise stated)

Particulars of transactions with related parties

Rendering o f S erv ices/ Sales 

Receiving o f Services /  Purchases 

Rem uneration to  W hole tim e Directors 

Rent receipts

Guarantee Commission received

Sale o f Investm ents /  Business U ndertaking

Interest Received

Interest Paid

Finance (including loans & equity contributions in cash or in kind) 

Trade Payables 

Trade Receivables

Am ounts in brackets represents previous year data.

Derivatives

ACCEL TRANSMATIC LIMITED
Annual Report 2011-12

Controlling

Company

(12,000,000)

27,61,478

(4,411,561)

2,19,59,839

(49,869,418)

Companies Under 

Common Control

3,86,70,590

(106,720,279)

20,70,476

(1,265,798)

12,14,880

(1,214,880)

Nil

(350,000)

19,97,00,000

Nil

(137,500)

1,20,22,538

(5,038,555)

5,72,38,916

(50,841,658)

2,71,51,197

(52,15,098)

Nil

(44,818,260)

SI.No Particulars

01 Category wise quantita tive  data abou t Derivative instruments outstanding at 
the  Balance sheet date

02  Purpose o f H edging

03 Foreign Currency Exposure th a t are not hedged by a derivative Instrum ent 
or otherwise:

Due to  creditors

Due from  Debtors

31.03.2012

Nil

N ot Applicable

EURO 25,000  

US$1100  

EUROS 304,609  

JPY 750,000

4ACCEL

Key Management 

Personnel

3,015,360

(3,009,360)

22,425

(14,959)

1,50,000

(150,000)

31.03.2011

Nil

N ot Applicable

EURO 25,000  

US$12,40,398  

JPY17,37,145  

GBP4,334
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Segment Information

4
ACCEL
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In term s o f the  Accounting Standard 17, 'Segm ent Reporting' notified under the  Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, the  
company's operations are classified into tw o  business segments as described in th e  accounting policy and the  inform ation on the  same 
is as under:

Particulars

Segm ent Revenue  

External Sales Net o f Taxes & Duties 

C urrent year 

Previous Year 

Total Revenue

Current year 

Previous Year 

Segm ent Result

Current year 

Previous Year 

Interest Expense (Net)

Current year 

Previous Year 

Non O perational Expenses 

Current year 

Previous Year 

Net profit /  (Loss)

Current year 

Previous Year 

O ther Inform ation  

Segm ent Assets

Current year 

Previous Year 

Segm ent Liabilities 

Current year 

Previous Year 

Capital Expenditure  

Current year 

Previous Year 

Depreciation

Current year 

Previous Year 

Non Cash Expenses 

O ther than Depreciation  

Current year 

Previous Year

Corporate 
(Un allocated) Technology Services Animation Services

147,074,254

7,667,408

139,824,460

(2,474,687)

963,184

964,187

6,180,389

132,681,229

(3,438,874)

368,682,472

241,714,458

238,890,447

208,242,108

412,540

412,521

6,180,389

71,634,224

140,744,808

72,953,941

141,132,348

17,632,914

19,929,995

1,044,800

2,763,618

2,287,361

16,588,114

14,879,017

16,588,114

63,515,667

48,636,651

3,064,066

1,436,159

4,885,244

2,287,361

14,165,198

51,505,575

17,188,080

53,426,205

(93,295,853)

(29,481,106)

31,844,794

18,115,895

21,239,492

358,665

(146,380,139)

(47,955,666)

(32,657,141)

180,201,870

113,722,998

228,553,235

106,988,313

2,912,721

50,122,352

39,760,295

21,239,492

358,665

Total

85 ,799,422 

192,250,383

237,216,275

202,225,961

64,161,521

(12,025,798)

33,852,778

21,843,700

27,419,881

2,646,026

2,889,203

(36,515,523)

352.613.445  

485,431,995

352.613.445  

485,431,994

106,988,313

5,976,787

51,971,051

45,058,060

27,419,881

2,646,026

The C om pany has only the  Dom estic Geographic Segm ent.
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Summary of significant accounting policies & practices, forming 
part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2012
(All am ounts are in Indian Rupees, unless otherw ise stated)

Contingencies and commitments

March 31.2012

(Rupees in Lacs) 

March 31.2011

Outstanding bank guarantees /  letter o f Credits 1.10 29.71

<- Corporate G uarantee to a bank on behalf o f an Associate Com pany @ 350.00 385.00

Sales tax Dem ands - 6.28

Incom e Tax Dem ands 135.95 135.95

T Customs 33.87 33.87

PF & Others 26.87 26.87

@ The corporate guarantee was given to a bank for th e  limits enjoyed by an associate company, Accel IT Resources Limited while it was a 
subsidiary .This is backed by an interest bearing cash deposit o f Rs. 230  Lakhs from  the  said com pany which is m ore than th e  exposure of 
th a t com pany w ith  the  bank as on the  date  o fth e  balance sheet..

Estimated am ount o f Contracts rem aining to  be executed on Capital account and not provided for (N et o f Advances) is Rs. Nil Lacs (Previ­
ous year Rs.144.68 Lacs)

It is not practicable for the  com pany to  estim ate the  tim ings o f cash outflows, if any, in respect o f the  above pending resolutions o f the  
respective proceedings.The com pany does not expect any reim bursem ent from  third parties in respect o fth e  above contingent liability.

Additional In form ation pursuant to  Part II o f Schedule VI o f the  Companies Act, 1956, to  the  extent applicable.

(a) CIF Value of Imports March 31,2012 March 31,2011

Raw M aterial & Com ponents Nil Nil

Capital goods Nil Nil

(b) Earnings in foreign currency - accruals March 31,2012 March 31,2011

Towards incom e from  services 7,21,22,770 15,23,93,875

(c) Expenditure in foreign currency March 31,2012 March 31,2011

Services 62,44,988 73,24,123

Towards Foreign Travel 73,05,946 2,17,37,019

(d) Number of Non Resident Shareholders and dividends paid to them. (On payment basis)

Particulars N um ber o f Share Holders Dividend Paid

Non Resident Shareholders 35 Nil

Previous year's figures have been reg ro u p e d , recasted and rearranged wherever necessary, to  suit th e  current period layout.

| V ide our report o f even date

Varma and Varma 
Firm registration No. 4532S  

! Chartered Accountants

|
| P R Prasanna Varm a F.C.A
I M em bership n o : 25854

Partner

I Place: Chennai
Date: 29th May 2012

For and on behalf o f the  board o f directors

N R Panicker 
Chairman

Philip John 
W hole tim e Director

A M ohan Rao 
Director

S TP rabhu  
Com pany Secretary
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Balance sheet abstract and company's general business profile

Registration Details

Registration N um ber 09-4485

Balance Sheet Date 31st M arch ,2012

II Capital raised during the  year (Amounts in Rs.Thousands)

Rights Issue NIL

Share Application NIL

Public Issue NIL

Bonus Issue NIL

III Position o f m obilisation and developm ent o f funds (Am ount in Rs.Thousands)

Total Liabilities 297425 Total Assets 297425

Sources o f Funds

Paid -U p Capital 114540

Secured Loans 69225

Reserves & Surplus 24461

Unsecured Loans 89199

Application o f Funds

Net Fixed Assets 204603

Net Current Assets 4677

Accum ulated Losses 88125

Investments 50

Misc. Expenditure

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) -

IV Perform ance o f Com pany (A m ount in Rs.Thousands)

Total Expenditure 234531

Profit/(Loss) A fter Tax 2889

Dividend @ % NIL

Turnover 237420

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2889

Earninqs/Share in Rs. 0.26

V Generic names o f three principal products/services o f com pany as per m onetary terms)

Item  Code No.(ITC Code) Product description

A nim ation services
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